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N A R R A T I V E  R E P O R T  

 
An introduction to the City of Lincolnõs 2018/1 9 Statement  of Accounts by  J Gibson , 
Chief Finance Officer, Section 151 Officer .  

 
The Statement of Accounts  

 

The purpose of  the Accounts, which 

follow, is  to give electors, those subject 

to locally levied taxes and charges, 

Members of the Council, employees 

and oth er interested parties clear 

information about the Councilõs 

finances. The Accounts show the 

financial performance for 201 8/1 9 and 

the financial position at 31 March 

2019. The Accounts present 

expenditure and income incurred by 

the Council in the financial year 

2018/1 9 and highlight changes in the 

financial position of the Council over 

the course of the year.    

 

The accounts of the Council are, by 

their nature, both technical and 

complex. The information contained 

within the Accounts for 201 8/1 9 is 

presente d as simply and clearly as 

possible and the Narrative Report 

explains some of the statements and 

provides a summary of the Councilõs 

financial performance as at 31st 

March 201 9 and its financial prospects.  

 

The financial statements have been 

prepared in ac cordance with the 

Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the UK (the Code) 

published by the Chartered Institute of 

Public Finance and Accountancy 

(CIPFA).   

 

The Statement of Accounts c onsists of 

various sections and statements, 

which are briefl y explained below:  

 

A Narrative Report ð this provides 

information on the format of this 

Statement of Accounts as well as a 

review of the financial position of the 

Council for the financial year.  

 

 

 

The Statement of Responsibilities ð this 

details the resp onsibilities of the 

Council and the S ection 151 Officer 

concerning the Councilõs financial 

affairs and the actual Statement of 

Accounts.  

 

The Audit Opinion and Certificate  ð this 

is provided by Mazars LLP following the 

completion of the annual audit.  

 

The Accounting Policies ð this 

statement explains the basis for the 

recognition, measurement and 

disclosure of transaction s and other 

events in the accounts.  

 
The Core Financial Statements, 

comprising:  

 

¶ The Movements in Reserves 

Statement  ð this statement 

show s the movement in year on 

the different reserves held by 

the Council, analysed into 

ôusableõ (i.e. those that can be 

applied to fund expenditure or 

reduce local taxation) and 

other  unusable  reserves.  

 

¶ The Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 

(CIES) ð this statement shows 

the accounting cost in the year 

of providing services in 

accordance with accounting 

standards , rather than the 

amount funded from taxation. 

The Council raises taxation to 

cover the cost of expenditure in 

accordance with regulatio ns; 

this may be different from the 

accounting cost. The taxation 

position is shown in the 
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Movement in Reserves 

Statement.  

 

¶ The Balance Sheet ð th is 

statement shows the value as at 

the Balance Sheet date of the 

assets and liabilities recognised 

by the Counc il. The net assets 

(assets less liabilities) of the 

Council are matched by the 

reserves held by the Council.  

 

¶ The Cash Flow Statement ð this 

statement shows the changes in 

cash and cash equivalents of 

the Council during the year. It 

shows how the Council 

generates and uses cash and 

cash equivalents by classifying 

cash flows as operating, 

investing and financing 

activities.  

 
The Notes to the Financial Statements  ð 

these provide supporting and 

explanatory information on the 

Financial Statements.  

 
The Suppleme ntary Statements, 

comprising:  

 

¶ The Housing Revenue Income 
and Expenditure Statement -  

this statement shows the 

economic cost in the year of 

providing housing services in 

accordance with generally 

accepted accounting 

practices, rather than the 

amount to be funded from rents 

and government grants. The 

Council charges rents to cover 

expenditure in accordance 

with regulations ; this may be 

different from the accounting 

cost. The increase or decrease 

in the year, on the basis of 

which rents are raised, is shown 

in th e Movement on the HRA 

Statement.  
 

¶ The Movement on the HRA 

Statement ð this statement takes 

the outturn on the HRA Income 

and Expenditure Statement and 

reconciles it to the surplus or 

deficit for the year on the HRA 

Balance, calculated in 

accordance wit h the 

requirements of the Local 

Government and Housing Act 

1989. 

 

¶ The Collection Fund Statement  -  

this statement is an agent õs 

statement that reflects the 

statutory obligation for billing 

authorities (such as the City of 

Lincoln Council) to maintain a 

sepa rate Collection Fund. The 

statement shows the 

transactions of the Council in 

relation to the collection from 

Council Tax  and Business Rate 

payers and distribution to 

Lincolnshire County Council, 

Police and Crime Commissioner 

for Lincolnshire (PCCL) and 

Gov ernment of Council Tax  and 

National Non -Domestic Rates  

(NNDR). 

 

 
Financial Summary 201 8/1 9 

 

In common with the rest of local 

government the Council has 

continued to face a large number of 

challenges during 2018 /1 9 which have 

seen:  

 

¶ the continuation of seve re 

central government funding 

reductions, the distribution of 

which has not been uniform 

across the different types of 

authority with some being 

significantly more affected than 

others, this Council being one of 

those suffering a greater 

proportionate loss . 

 

¶ an increased reliance on 

retained Business Rates and the 

levels of financial risk and 
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uncertainty that this creates.   

During 2018/19 the Council was 

part of a Government ôpilotõ of 

100% rates retention scheme.  

 

¶ the legacy of impacts from the 

last econom ic crisis that still 

persist, affecting jobs, housing 

and business growth, low returns 

on investments,  these in turn 

create pressure on the 

generation of local income 

streams and increased demand 

for council services from 

customers who rely on the 

safety net provided by local 

government.  

However in response to this 

environment the Council continues to 

deliver a track record of strong 

financial discipline.  This means 

p lanning ahead, securing savings in 

advance, re -investing in more efficient 

ways of workin g, adopting a more 

commercial approach, prioritising 

resources for economic development 

measures, whilst making careful use of 

reserves to meet funding gaps and 

mitigate risks.  

 

The Councilõs successful financial 

management to date has enabled 

the protecti on of core services , whilst 

at the same time ensuring  that 

resources are directed towards the 

priority areas in the Councilõs Vision 

2020.   

 

2018/1 9 has seen a significant level of 

delivery against these Vision 2020 

priority areas, with £ 13m of  investment  

in new Council Housing and £ 13m of 

investment  in property assets . 

 

In summary, services have continued 

to be provided , whilst achieving 

£0.293m savings in addition to those 

achieved in previous years; and the 

Council has delivered £ 38.95m of 

capital inves tment, a slight reduction 

on £39.805m in 2017/1 8.  In addition, 

the Councilõs net worth has increased 

from £ 200.738m in 2017/1 8 to 

£206.074m in 2018/1 9, an increase of 

2.7%.   

 
 
 
Performance  

 

Whilst maintaining sound financial 

management and delivering sp ending 

within budget the Council has 

continued to deliver high quality 

services to its residents and customers.  

A summary of the key financial and 

performance indicators for 201 8/1 9 is 

provided below:  
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2017/1 8  2018/19  

98.9% Business Rates collected  99.8% 

97.2% Council Tax collected  96.8% 

99.7% Housing rent collected  99.2% 

95.2%  Invoices paid within 30 days  97.8%  

4.09% Interest rate payable on debt  3.24% 

0.68% Interest rate received on investments  0.77% 

33.7% Waste recycled  34.9% 

218,181 Users of Health & Recreation services  247,921 

97.5% Housing repairs completed to target  98.7% 

80.1% Occupancy of allotments  84.2% 

98% 
Premises compliant with food health and safety 

inspection  
96% 

1,022 Number of planning applications received  907 

 

 
Revenue  Income and Expenditure  
 
General Fund  
 

The General Fund covers all net 

spending by the Council on services 

other than those accounted for in the 

Housing Revenue Account. General 

Fund services are partly paid for by 

government grants and contributions 

from Retained Business Rates, with the 

balance being funded from Council 

Tax and income from fees and 

charges.  
 

For 2018/1 9, the approved net 

expenditure budget for General Fund 

services was £13.988m. After allowing 

for  planned contributions of £ 0.288m 

to  non -earmarked general reserves 

the total Net General Fund Budget for 

2018/1 9 was £14.276m.   

 

The Net General Fund Budget of 

£14,276m assumed the achievement 

of £0.102m further  savings which were 

to be delivered in 201 8/1 9 as part of 

the Councilõs Towards Financial 

Sustainability Programme. The 

Programm e continues to be  successful  

and has now delivered total savings of 

£3.823m.  Work continues in 

developing  and delivering new 

projects as part of the  programme to 

secure the additional savings required 

in 2019/ 20 and future years.   

 

The table that follows  provides a 

summary of the final outturn position 

for the General Fund, against the net 

budget.  
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 ACTUAL 

2018/1 9 

Ãõ000 

REVISED 

BUDGET 

2018/1 9 

Ãõ000 

VARIANCE 

2018/1 9 

Ãõ000 

    

Chief Executive and Town Cl erk 4,018 3.847 171 

Directorate of Housing & Regeneration  715 754 (39) 

Directorate of Communities & Environment  5,433 4,380 1,053 

Directorate of Major Developments  461 506 (45) 

Corporate  1650 1,645 (5) 

Net Operational Expenditure  12,267 11,132 1,135 

    

Specific Grants  (1,032) (1,006) (26) 

Savings Target  0 (26) 26 

Earmarked Reserves  1,406 1,728 (322) 

Capital Accounting Adjustment  1,773 1,864 (91) 

Contingencies  0 296 (296) 

Total Expenditure  14,414 13,988 426 
    

Contribution from  General Balanc es 248 288 40 

Total Net Budget  14,662 14,276 386 

    

Business Rates -    

Retained Business Rates Income  (26,032) (28,041) 2,009 

Tariff 20,199 20,620 (421) 

Section 31 grant  (1,974) 0 (1,974) 

Levy Payment  0 0 0 

Revenue Support Grant  0 0 0 

Council Ta x  (6,393) (6,393) 0 

Council Tax Surplus  (30) (30) 0 

NNDR Deficit  (432) (432) 0 

Total Resources  (14,662)  (14,276)  (386)  

 

While total expenditure was £14.414 m (£0.426m more than budget) this is primarily  

offset by £0. 386m additional net business rate i ncome (primarily from additional 

section 31 grants ).  As a result the actual contribution to  general balances was 

£0.248m compared to the approved budget of £0. 288m, resulting in a variance of 

£0.040m.   

 

As at 31 March 201 9, the Council held 

£8.527m Gene ral Fund revenue 

reserves, comprising  £6.678m 

earmarked reserves (to cover specific 

or potential financial risks and 

liabilities ) and £ 1.849m non -earmarked 

general reserves. This latter balance 

represents 13.2% of the 201 8/1 9 annual 

net service budget and provides an 

adequate level of reserves to cover 

unforeseen financial risks.   General 

Balances are in line with the prudently 

assessed minimum requirements in the 

Councilõs Medium Term Financial 

Strategy.  

 
 
Housing Revenue Account  
 

The Housing Revenue Acco unt has to 

be kept as a separate account for all 

the expenditure and income relating 

to the landlord functions associated 
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with the provision, management and 

maintenance of Council owned 

dwellings.   

 

For 2018/1 9, the approved net 

operating budget for the H ousing 

Revenue Account was a 

deficit /surplus  of £0.0m.  Actual net 

expenditure for 201 8/1 9 was £0.005m 

surplus, resulting in a  £5k surplus 

variance against the budget.  

 

The table that follows  provides a 

summary of the final outturn position 

for the Housing  Revenue Account, 

against the net budget.  
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 ACTUAL 

2018/1 9 

Ãõ000 

REVISED  

BUDGET 

2018/1 9 

Ãõ000 

VARIANCE 

2018/1 9 

Ãõ000 

Operational Expenditure     

Repairs & Maintenance  8,939 8,298 641 

Supervision & Management  6,781 6,983 (202) 

Provisions (including  Bad Debt)  284 290 (6) 

Capital Financing  4,799 10,709 (5,910) 

Sub Total 20,803 26,281 (5,477) 

Add:     

HRS ð repatriation of surplus  (272) 0 (272) 

Contribution to/(from) HRS (IAS19 & Insurance 

Fund)  

387 0 387 

Interest Payable & Similar Charges  2,352 2,352 0 

Total Expenditure  23,270 28,633 (5,361) 

    

Income     

Rents & Service Charges  (28,415) (28,150) (265) 

Interest  (68) (31) (37) 

Net Expenditure  (5,212) 451 (5,663) 

Less:    

Capital Accounting Adjustment  1,487 0 1,487 

Appropriation to/(from) M ajor Repairs 

Reserves 

4,506 0           4,506 

Appropriation to/(from) Pension Fund Liability  (385) 0 (385) 

Appropriations to/(from) Earmarked Reserves  (321) (451) 130 

Net HRA (Surplus)/Deficit  (5)  0 (5)  

    

 

  

As at 31 March 201 9, the Council held 

£2.348m HRA revenue reserves, 

comprising £1.321m earmarked 

reserves (to cover identified specific, 

potential financial risks and liabilities) 

and £ 1.027m non -earmarked general 

reserves.  
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Capital Expenditure   

(Note 3 9) 

 

Capital expenditure on the provision 

of new or enhanced assets is met from 

capital receipts, government grants, 

contributions from third parties and 

revenue contributions , with the 

balance funded from borrowing . 

 

The Councilõs capital spending in the 

year was £ 38.95m compared to the  

revised  approved  programme budget 

of £54.993m, representing a n 

underspend  of £16.040m against the 

profile d  budget. The variance in 

2018/1 9 is mostly due to  the  re-profiling  

of schemes within the general fund  

and housing programmes . The 2018/1 9 

capital spending and  funding position 

is summarised as follows:  

 

 

ACTUAL 

2018/19  

Ãõ000 

BUDGET 

2018/19  

Ãõ000 

VARIANCE 

2018/19  

Ãõ000 

Capital Expenditure       

General Fund  13,968 23,535 (9,567) 

Housing Revenue  24,985 31,458 (6,473) 

Total Expenditure  38,953 54,993 (16,040)  

    

Financed by:     

Borrowing  11,642 20,468 (8,826) 

Capital Receipts  8,185 12,207 (4,022) 

Capital Grants and 

Contributions  
1,011 1,649 (638) 

Major Repairs Reserve  13,160 20,245 (7,085) 

Revenue Contributions  4,956 424 4,532 

Total Financing  38,954 54,993 (16,039)  

 
Maj or Capital works carried out during 201 8/1 9 are set out in the following table:  

 
 Ãõ000 

Housing   

Decent Homes improvements to Council dwellings  6,378 

Health & Safety  300 

Council house new build schemes  15,275 

Land Acquisition Fund  2,231 

Other major works to housing stock  801 

General Fund   

Lincoln Transport HUB 547 

Purchase of Land and Buildings   11,206 

Allotment Improvement Programme  462 

Enhancements to corporate properties  772 

Disabled Facilities Grants  695 

Other Schemes  286 

Total 38,953 
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Capital Financing  
 

The Councilõs capital programme is 

funded by a number of sources 

including the application of capital 

receipts, capital grants, contributions 

from the revenue account and long 

term borrowing. A summary of 

significant  transactions  in capital 

fundi ng in 201 8/1 9 is provided below:  
 

Capital Receipts  (Note 9) 
 

The Council received £2.359m of  

General Fund capital receipts in 

2018/ 19 which will be used to support 

delivery of the General Fund 

Investment Programme.    

 

The Coun cil also received £ 2.072m of 

HRA receipts. These will be used to 

support the new build programme  

within the Housing Investment 

Programme  and investment in the 

housing stock .  
 

Major Repairs Reserve (Note 9) 

 

The Council is required to maintain a 

Major Repa irs Reserve, which controls 

an element of the capital resources 

limited to being used on capital 

expenditure on HRA assets or the 

financing of historical capital 

expenditure by the HRA. The balance 

shows the capital resources that have 

yet to be applied at  the year -end.  

 

 

 

 

Long Term Borrowing  (Note 1 8) 
  

The Council undertakes long term 

borrowing, for periods in excess of one 

year, in order to finance capital 

expenditure. An assessment of the use 

of borrowing to fund capital 

expenditure is made through th e 

application of the CIPFA Prudential 

Code in the Councilõs annual Treasury 

Management Strategy. This approach 

provides a framework for decision 

making  highlighting the level of 

capital expenditure, the impact on 

borrowing and investment levels and 

the ove rall controls in place to ensure 

activity remains affordable, prudent 

and sustainable.  

 

The Council satisfies its long term 

borrowing requirement by securing 

external loans.    

 

Although the Council requires long 

term borrowing in order to finance 

capital expenditure,  it can  temporarily 

defer the need to borrow externally by 

using cash set aside for longer term 

purposes  (in line with its Treasury 

Management Strategy) ; this practice 

means that there is no immediate link 

between the need to borrow to pay 

for capital spend and the level of 

external borrowing. The effect of using 

the cash set aside is to reduce the 

level of cash that the Council has 

available for investment.   

 

The Councilõs level of total debt 

outstanding , (excluding loans of 

£0.030m which the C ouncil holds for 

local charities and Bonds worth 

£0.003m) , as at 31 March 201 9 was 

£115.354m.    
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Total  Long Term Borrowing Outstanding  

31/03/18  

Ãõ000 Source of loan  

31/03/1 9 

Ãõ000 

58,793 Public Works Loan Board  71,793 

18,000 Market and Other Long  Term Loans 43,000 

561 Other (3% stock)  561 

77,354 Total 115,354 

 

 

  

Long -term borrowing of £20m and 

£18m of short term borrowing was 

taken during 201 8/1 9.  Short term 

borrowing of £3.75m was repaid 

during 2018/19.  This represents a net 

increase of £ 34.25m of borrowing since 

31 March 2018. T he Council remains 

under borrowed by £ 4.435m (i.e. the 

Councilõs actual borrowing is Ã4.435m 

less than its borrowing requirement at  

31 March 201 9).  This means that 

the borrowing need (CFR) has not 

been fully funde d with loan debt as 

cash supporting the Councilõs reserves, 

balances and cash flow has been 

used as a temporary measure. This 

strategy is considered prudent whilst 

investment returns are currently low  

and internal balances allow for this .  

Additional long -term borrowing will be 

taken in 2019/20  and  future years to 

bring levels up to the C ouncilõs 

borrowing requirement , subject to 

liquidity requirements, if preferential 

interest rates are available.    

 
Pension Costs   

(Note 4 4) 

 

The Council accounts for retir ement 

benefits when it is committed to give 

them, even if the actual giving will be 

many years into the future. This means 

that:  

 

¶ The financial statements reflect 

the liabilities arising from the 

Councilõs retirement obligations. 

 

¶ The costs of providing 

retirement benefits to 

employees are recognised in 

the accounting period in which 

the benefits are earned by 

employees, and the related 

finance costs and any other 

changes in value of assets and 

liabilities are recognised in the 

accounting periods in which 

they arise.  

 

¶ The financial statements 

disclose the cost of providing 

retirement benefits and related 

gains, losses, assets and 

liabilities  

 
The Balance Sheet presents a n 

increase  in the estimated Pension 

Fund Reserve net liability over the 

2018/1 9 year of £ 14.832m, up  from 

£85.858m at 1 April 201 8 to £ 100.690m 

at 31 March 201 9. This increase  in the 

Pension Fund deficit resulted mainly 

from changes in financial assumptions . 

This is recognised as re-measurements 

on defined benefit obligation , which  is 

shown in  Other C omprehensive 

Income and E xpenditure within the 

Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement . 

 

The statutory arrangements for funding 

the remaining liability of £100.690m 

means that this deficit will be made 

good by the increased level of annual 

employer contributions payable to the 

Pension Fund over the remaining 

estimated average working life of our 

employees in the Pension Scheme. The 

latest triennial revaluation of the 

Councilõs Pension Fund took place at 

31 March 201 6, the results at that time  

identif ied  that there has been a slight 

improvement  in the funding position 

since the  last actuarial review from a 
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67% funding level to 70 %.  The next 

actuarial rev aluation is due as at 31 st 

March 201 9.   

Although the overall funding position 

has improved  slightly, the employer 

contribution rates are still required to 

increase in order to improve the 

funding position further. Because of 

the guaranteed nature of Local 

Government Pension Scheme a 

stabilisation overlay mechanism is 

applied, whereby the employ erõs 

current contribution rate is capped at  

an affordable level. Without  this in 

place the Council would be facing 

significantly higher contribution rates in 

order to increase the funding position.  

This stabilisation approach has 

allowed the annual increas e in the 

contribution rate to be capped at 1% 

p.a. over the period 2017/18 to 

2019/20.   

 

 
 
Future Plans 

 

The Councilõs Vision 2020 sets out the 

Councilõs vision for the future of the 

city, strategic priorities and core 

values.  Although the Vision looks 

ahead for up to 30 years it specifically 

includes a programme of activity up 

to 2020, which seeks to not only deal 

with the most pressing issues in the city, 

but also details how the Council will 

work, with others, to further grow 

Lincolnõs economy. 

 

The Councilõs vision for 2020 is; 
 

"Together, letõs deliver Lincolnõs 
ambitious future"  

 

Underpinning this vision are four 

strategic priorities, each with a 

number of supporting aspirations. The 

aspirations are in turn supported by 

groups of projects that will b e 

delivered throughout the three year 

programme.  

 

The four strategic priorities are:  

 

¶ Letõs drive economic growth 

¶ Letõs reduce inequality 

¶ Letõs deliver quality housing 

¶ Letõs enhance our remarkable 

place  

Delivery of the Councilõs Vision 2020 

provides the fo cus for the Council in 

terms of the projects it seeks to deliver 

and the high performing services that 

it provides.  

 

 
 
General Fund  

 

Despite the financial challenges the 

Council has already faced, and 

successfully managed, local 

government is still set to  experience 

significant funding reform from 2020.  

 

The Fair Funding Review will re -

establish the baseline need of every 

local authority, and, at the same time, 

business rates baselines will be reset for 

the first time. The government also 

intends to redesi gn the business rates 

retention system, moving to 75% local 

retention, while restructuring the 
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system of risk and rewards. All this is 

currently due to come into effect in 

April 2020.  
 

In addition the impact of Brexit and 

the consequent impact on the 

econ omic and political landscapes 

poses significant uncertainty for local 

government and the Council.  
 

Ahead of this the Councilõs General 

Fund continues to face a significant 

financial challenge if it is to continue 

to deliver its Vision 2020 priorities and 

to deliver services to the public within 

a reduced, and more variable funding 

envelope.  

 

Whilst the three year programme of 

activity set out in the Vision 2020 is fully 

resourced within the Councilõs 

Medium Term Financial Strategy, the 

Strategy also includ es a savings target 

still to be achieved along with a 

number of significant financial risks 

which could affect the level of savings 

required.  

 

Over the last 10 year period the 

Council has delivered savings  in 

excess of £7.8 m, a significant 

reduction in com parison to the overall 

net expenditure budget. However 

further savings of £1.2 m are still to be 

delivered in order to a chieve the 

current target by 2020 / 21. 

 

The Towards Financial Sustainability 

(TFS) programme is and continues to 

be the vital element in e nsuring that 

the Council maintains a sustainable 

financial position and delivers the 

required reductions in the net budget.  

The programme itself has been 

refocused reflecting the Councilõs 

innovative, forward thinking and 

commercial approach alongside its  

ambitions to maintain high performing 

services and a performance culture.  

As part of this refocus there are now 

four agreed strands to achieve 

savings. These are:  

 

¶ òOne Counciló ð cross 

organisational lean reviews to 

deliver a òone organisationaló 

approa ch more efficiently and 

effectively  

¶ Commercialisation ð generation 

of new income streams, and 

commercial trading 

opportunities  

¶ Investment Opportunities ð to 

invest in commercial properties 

as well as regeneration and 

redevelopment schemes that 

support the  local economy  

¶ Service Reduction/Withdrawal ð 

withdraw from some services or 

reduce the level of service 

provided for those non priority 

services  

Alongside this programme the Council 

will continue to seek ways to maximise 

its tax bases through economic 

dev elopment measures, through its 

Vision 2020, which  enhance the 

economic prosperity of the City.  
 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)  
 

HRA Self-financing was implemented 

from 1 April 2012 following a one -off 

settlement to the Treasury, in order to 

ôbuy outõ of the old subsidy system. The 

new system incentivised landlords to 

manage their assets well and yield 

efficiency savings.  With this however 

also came the transfer of significant 

risks from Central Government to local 

authorities. The Council now bears the 

responsibility for the long term security 

and viability of council housing in 

Lincoln and has to fund all activity 

related to council housing from the 

income generated from rents, through 

long term business planning.  

 

It was anticipated that there would be 

greater certainty about future income 

as councils were no longer subject to 

annual funding decisions by Central 

Government, enabling them to 
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develop long -term plans, and to retain 

income for reinvestment.  

 

A key element of the self -financing 

regime is for t he Council to construct a 

30 year Business Plan for the HRA. The 

Councilõs latest Housing Revenue 

Account Business Plan 2016 -2046, was 

approved in February 2016 following a 

fundamental review of resources, 

investment requirements and priorities.  

The Business Plan reflects the impact of 

government policy changes, the 

results of stock condition surveys and 

financial assumptions at the time.  The 

Business plan sets out:  

 

¶ the long term plans for the 

Councilõs housing stock 

¶ the finances to deliver plans  

¶ how the  Council will manage 

the income from its stock, 

demand for housing and stock 

condition, and:  

¶ the Councilõs ambitious plans, 

alongside the resources to 

deliver , a  significant number of 

new Council dwellings.  

A review of the current Business Plan is 

schedul ed to commence during 

2019/20.  
 
Capital Expenditure  
 

The Councilõs capital strategy plans to  

deliver projects to the value of £ 67.2m  

over the next five years, with £ 19.2m  

estimated to be spent in 2019/20.  This 

includes significant investment in the 

Counc ilõs key strategic projects which 

include s a significant land and 

property  acquisition  in addition to 

further investment on  Council 

dwellings and Council buildings,  

including  the construction of new 

c ouncil housing .  
 

 
 

Capital resources for the next five  

years include capital receipts, 

government grants, contributions from 

third parties and revenue 

contributions.    

 

The Housing element of the capital 

programme represents th e largest 

element of capital expenditure over 

the next 5 years and is predominantly  

reliant upon revenue contributions 

from the Housing Revenue Account 

(HRA) through both depreciation 

charges and direct revenue 

contributions.  The HRA Business Plan 

includes the release of capital 

resource to fund significant capital 

investment in new hou sing stock over 

the medium term.  Given that revenue 

support is now the primary source of 

capital funding, it is recognised that it 

is critical that there is robust budget 

management of the HRA and that 

opportunities to achieve efficiencies 

and maintain/ma ximise income 

streams are actively pursued.   
 
Cash flows  
 

The future cash flows will  be 

dependent on the outcome of a 

number of key assumptions in the 

Medium T erm Financial Strategy and 

HRA Business Plan, of which the 

Council  has varying degrees of 

influen ce over the outcomes.  Some of 

the key determinants will be:  

¶ Actual Business Rates base in 

year compared to the assumed 

levels in the budget, and the 

ongoing risk of funding the 

backdated costs of any 

successful valuation office 
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appeals by businesses withi n 

the city.  

¶ Collection rates for Council Tax, 

Business Rates and Rents 

¶ Income received compared to 

income targets (e.g. car 

parking, planning and building 

control)  

¶ Interest rates achieved on 

investments and secured on 

new borrowing  

¶ Timescale for payment of  

invoices and collection of 

debts.   

¶ Profile of capital spending and 

funding over the MTFS.  

 
 
Summary  
 

Whilst addressing the financial 

challenges it faces in the forthcoming 

years the Council will also continue to 

maintain the correct balance 

between these  challenges and 

ensuring that its limited resources are 

directed towards its strategic priorities.   

 

Vision 2020 is supported by a 

programme of activity, resourced 

through the Medium Term Financial 

Strategy, that seeks to not only deal 

with the most press ing issues in the city, 

but also how the Council will work, 

with others, to embrace and maximise 

Lincolnõs economy through schemes 

such as its property investments  and 

New Council House Building 

Programme.    

 

This investment in growth and the local 

economy  alongside the Councilõs 

savings programme, with a key focus 

on income generation, forms the 

foundations of the Councilõs approach 

to financial planning over the medium 

term, seeking to enhance its financial 

resilience and to continue to focus its 

resource s towards achieving its 

aspirations in its Vision 2020.  

 

 

 

Group Accounts  

The increasing scope and scale of 

local authorities moving away from 

traditional ways of providing services 

makes it increasingly difficult for the 

Councilõs own financial statements to 

present fairly all the aspects of control 

over service provision and 

accountability for all resources and 

exposure to risks that the Council has 

taken on. A consolidated set of group 

accounts can make a vital 

contribution towards giving users a full 

picture of the Councilõs sphere of 

control and influence.  

 

 

 
 

 

The Council has a collaborative 

arrangement with North Kesteven and 

West Lindsey District Councils to 

provide the Central Lincolnshire Joint 

Planning Unit. This arrangement is 

hosted by North K esteven District 

Council. The Council contributed £99k 

to the service which is contained 

within the Communities and 

Environment  line of the CIES. The 

Council also has a collaborative 

arrangement with North Kesteven to 

provide a shared Revenues and 

Benefits  Service. This shared service is 

hosted by the City of Lincoln Council. 

The Council contributed £ 1.267m to 

the service which is contained within 
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the Chief Executive õs Directorate  line 

in the CIES. Both of these 

arrangements are  governed through a 

Joint Com mittee representing each of 

the partner authorities.  Under these 

arrangements the ventures use their 

own resources to undertake an 

activity subject to joint control, and as 

such do not require consolidation into 

the Councilõs accounts. The Councilõs 

propo rtion of activity is accounted for 

separately within the Core Financial 

Statements.  

Further Information  

 

Further information about the 

accounts is available on request from 

the Chief Finance Officer, City Hall, 

Beaumont Fee Lincoln LN1 1DB.  In 

addition, l ocal electors have a 

statutory right to inspect the accounts 

before the audit is completed.  The 

availability of the accounts for 

inspection is advertised on the 

Councilõs website. 

 

J Gibson 
 

J Gibson  ACCA  

Chief Finance Officer  

(Section 151 Officer)  
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C O U N C I L  A P P R O V A L   
 
 

The Statement of Accounts for the year 1 April 201 8 to 31 March 201 9 has been 

prepared and I confirm that these Accounts were approved by the City of Lincoln 

Council, at the meeting held on *** th ******  2019? 

 

S Burke 
 

 

 

Councillor Sue Burke 

Vice Chair of Council  

 

Date: *** th ******  2019? 
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T H E  S T A T E M E N T  O F  R E S P O N S I B I L I T I E S 
 

The Authorityõs Responsibilities 
 

 

The Authority is required:  
 

¶ to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial af fairs and to 

ensure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those 

affairs. In this Authority, that officer is the Chief Finance Officer ; 
 

¶ to manage its affairs to ensure economic, efficient and effective use of resources 

and safeguard its assets;  
 

¶  to approve the Statement of Accounts.  
 

The Chief Finance Officer  Responsibilities  
 

The Chief Finance Officer  is responsible for the preparation of the Authorityõs 

Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set o ut in the Code 

of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK (ôthe Codeõ). 

 

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Finance Officer  has: 
 

¶ selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;  

 

¶ made judgements and estima tes that were reasonable and prudent;  
 

¶ complied with the Code of Practice.  
 

The Chief Finance Officer  has also:  
 

¶ kept proper accounting records which were up to date;  
 

¶ taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 

irregularitie s. 
 

The Accounts present a true and fair  view of the financial position of the Authority at 

31 March 201 9 and its income and expenditure for the year ended on that date.  

 
 

J Gibson 
 
J Gibson ACCA  

Chief Finance Officer  

Date : 31st May 2019
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M O V E M E N T  I N  R E S E RV E S 
 

 General  Earmarked  Housing  Major  Capital  Capital  Total Unusable  Total 

 Fund Reserves Revenue  Repair  Receipts  Grants  Usable  Reserves Council  

 Balance   Account  Reserve Reserve Unapplied  Reserves  Reserves 

 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 

          

Balance at 31 March 201 7 2,313 10,663 1,085 10,679 9,398 399 34,537 155,190 189,727 

          

Movement in reserves during 

2017/18  
         

          

Surplus or (deficit) on provision of 

services  

(4,889) 0 11,103 0 0 0 6,214 0 6,214 

Other Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure  

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,795 4,795 

Total Comprehensive 

Expenditure and Income  

(4,889)  0 11,103 0 0 0 6,214 4,795 11,009 

          

Adjustments between 

accounting basis & funding basis 

under regulations (Note 9)  

3,476 0 (10,950) 639 (153) (14) (7,002) 7,002 0 

Other adjustments  0 0 0 1,523 0 0 1,523 (1,523)  0 

Net Increase/Decrease before 

Transfers to Earmarked Reserves  

(1,413)  0 153 2,162 (153)  (14)  736 10,274 11,009 

          

Transfers (to)/from Earmarked 

Reserves 

710 (493) (217) 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Increase/Decrease in 2017/18  (703) (493) (64) 2,162 (153)  (14)  735 10,274 11,009 

          

Balance at 31 March 201 8 

carried forward  

1,610 10,170 1,021 12,841 9,245 385 35,272 165,464 200,736 
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M O V E M E N T  I N  R E S E RV E S 
 

 General  Earmarked  Housing  Major  Capital  Capital  Total Unusable  Total 

 Fund Reserves Revenue  Repair  Receipts  Grants  Usable  Reserves Council  

 Balance   Account  Reserve Reserve Unapplied  Reserves  Reserves 

 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 

 

 

Movement in reserves during 

2018/19  

Surplus or (deficit) on provision of 

services  

(83) 0 4,821 0 0 0 4,738 0 4,738 

Other Comprehensive 

Expenditure and Income  

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 600 600 

Total Comprehensive 

Expenditure and Income  

(83)  0 4,821 0 0 0 4,738 600 5,338 

          

Adjustments between 

accounting basis & funding basis 

under regulations (note 9)  

2,418 0 (5,137) (7,166) (4,671) 179 (14,377) 14,377 0 

Other adjustments  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

          

Net Increase/Decrease before 

Transfers to Earmarked Reserves  

2,335 0 (316) (7,166)  (4,671)  179 (9,639) 14,977 5,338 

          

Transfers (to)/from Earmarked 

Reserves 

(2,096) 1,776 320 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Increase/Decrease in Year  239 1,776 4 (7,166)  (4,671)  179 (9,639) 14,977 5,338 

          

Balance at 31 March 201 9 

carried f orward  

1,849 11,946 1,025 5,675 4,574 564 25,633 180,441 206,074 
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2017/18    
Note  

2018/19  

 

Gross Gross Net     Gross Gross Net  

Expenditure  Income  Expenditure     Expenditure  Income  Expenditure  

£'000 £'000 £'000    £'000 £'000 £'000 

43,342 (37,544) 5,798  Chief Executiveõs Directorate  40,559 (34,045) 6,514 

         

1,938 (928) 1,010  Housing and Regeneration   2,957 (2,165) 792 

         

15,463 (28,640) (13,177)  Housing Revenue Ac count (HRA)   20,804 (28,415) (7,611) 

         

18,002 (9,290) 8,712  Communities and Environment   18,721 (10,941) 7,780 

         

5,523 (178) 5,345  Major Developments   960 (371) 589 

         

150 (419) (270)  Corporate Services   1,152 (423) 729 

84,419 (77,001)  7,418  Cost Of Services   85,153 (76,360) 8,793 

         

  348  Other Operating Expenditure  11   1,393 

  3,000 

 

Financing and Investment 

Income and Expenditure  

12   2,699 

  (16,980) 

 

Taxation and Non -Specific Grant 

Income  

13,37   (17,624) 

  (6,214) 

 

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of 

Services  

   (4,739) 

         

  (1,057)  (Surplus) or deficit on revaluation 

of non -current assets  

14,16,22   (10,321) 

  0  Impairment Losses on Non -

Current Assets charged to the 

Revaluation Reserve  

   0 

  (58)  (Surplus) or deficit from 

investments in equity instruments 

designated at fair value through 

other comprehensive income  

26e   (325) 

  (3,682)  Total re -measurements on 

defined benefit obligation  

 

44   10,045 

  (4,797)   Other Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure  

   (601)  

         

  (11,011)   Total Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure  

   (5,339) 
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B A L A N C E  S H E E T  A S  A T  3 1  M A R C H  2 0 19  

 
 

 

 

 

  

 

RESTATED  

31 March 

2018  Notes  

31 March 

2019 

£'000   £'000 

    

332,979 Property, Plant & Equipment  4,14,39,41 361,380 

6,091 Heritage Assets  15 6,092 

16,224 Investment Property  14,16 30,478 

568 Intangible Assets  14,39 361 

473 Long Term Investments  18,47 798 

133 Long Term Debtors   1,035 

356,468 Long Term Assets   400,144 

    

4,575 Assets Held for Sale 22 1,500 

15,616 Short Term Investments  18,47 29,216 

220 Inventories  19 88 

876 Cash at Bank  21 1 

10,241 Short Term Debtors  18,20,47 9,778 

31,528 Current Assets   40,583 

    

0 Cash and Cash Equivalents  21 (613) 

(5,135) Short Term Borrowing  18 (21,476) 

(15,364) Short Term Creditors  18,23 (12,987) 

(20,499)  Current Liabilities   (35,076) 

    

(342) Long Term Creditors  18 (105) 

(3,205) Provisions 24 (3,428) 

(77,354) Long Term Borrowing  18 (95,354) 

(85,858) Other Long Term Liabilities  4,44 (100,690) 

(166,759)  Long Term Liabilities   (199,577) 

    

200,738 Net Assets   206,074 

 
 

35,274 Usable reserves  10 25,633 

165,464 Unusable Reserves  26 180,441 

    

200,738 Total Reserves   206,074 
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C A S H  F L O W  S T A T E M E N T 
 

 

2017/18    Notes  2018/19  

£'000    £'000 

     

6,214  Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services   4,739 

     

11,001  Adjustments to net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of 

services for non -cash movements  

28 14,010 

     

(7,673)  Adjustments for items in cluded in the net (surplus) or deficit 

on the provision of services that are investing and 

financing activities  

29 (5,613) 

     

9,542  Net cash flows from Operating Activities   13,136 

     

(15,660)  Investing Activities  30 (45,724) 

     

6,753  Financ ing Activities  31 31,100 

635  Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents   (1,488)  

     

241  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 

reporting period  

 876 

     

876  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 

period  

21 (612)  
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I N D E X  O F  N O T E S 

 P A G E  

Note 1 ð Accounting Policies  2 6  

Note 2 ð Accounting Standards Issued, Not Adopted  4 6  

Note  3 ð Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Polic ies 4 7  

Note  4 ð Future/Other Sources of Major Estimation  Uncertainty  4 8  

Note  5 ð Prior Period Adjustment  5 0  

Note  6 ð Events after the Balance Sheet Date  5 0  

Note 7 ð Expenditure and Funding Analysis  5 1  

Note  7A ð Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis  5 2  

Note  7B ð Segmental Income Analysis  5 3  

Note  8 ð Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature  5 3  

Note  9 ð Adjustment between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis 

under Regulation  
5 4  

Note 10 ð Movements in Earmarked Reserves  6 0  

Note  11 ð Other Operating Expenditure  6 2  

Note  12 ð Financing and Investment Inc ome and Expenditure  6 2  

Note  13 ð Taxation and Non -Specific Grant Income  6 2  

Note  14 ð Non -Current Assets including Property, Plant & Equipment  6 3  

Note  15 ð Heritage Assets  6 8  

Note  16 ð Investment Properties  and Surplus Assets  7 0  

Note 17 ð Intangible As sets 7 1  

Note 18 ð Financial Instruments  7 1  

Note 19 ð Inventories  7 7  

Note 20 ð Debtors  including Taxation Debtors.  7 7  

Note 21 ð Cash and Cash Equivalents  7 8  

Note 22 ð Assets Held for Sale  7 8  

Note 23 ð Creditors  7 8  

Note 24 ð Provisions 8 0  

Note 25 ð Usable Reserve s 8 1  

Note 26 ð Unusable Reserves  8 1  

Notes 27ð31 ð Cash Flow  Statement  8 7 - 8 9  

Note 32 ð Trading Operations  8 9  

Note 33 ð Agency Services  8 9  

Note 34 ð Membersõ Allowances 9 0  

Note 35 ð Officersõ Remuneration 9 0  

Note 36 ð External Audit Costs  9 2  

Note 37 ð Grant Income  9 3  

Note 38 ð Related Parties  9 4  

Note 39 ð Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing  9 6  

Note 40 ð Leases 9 7  

Note 41 ð Impairment Losses  9 9  

Note 42 ð Capitalisation of Borrowing Costs  9 9  

Note 43 ð Termination Benefits  9 9  

Note 44 ð Defined Benefit Pension Scheme  9 9  

Note 45 ð Contingent Liabilities  1 0 5  

Note 46 ð Conti ngent Assets  1 0 5  

Note 47 ð Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial 

Instruments  

1 0 5  
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N O T E S  T O  T H E  A C C O U N T S 
 

The values held within the proceeding Notes to the Accounts may vary slightly when 

compared to the main Statements or other Notes. This is due to amounts being 

rounded. It is not expected that a difference would be in excess of £2,000 in any 

single case . 
 

 

Note 1 ð Accounting Policies  

  

1.  Gene ral Principles  
 

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Councilõs transactions for the 2018/1 9 

financial year and its position at the year -end of 31 March 2019 . The Statement of 

Accounts has been prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. 

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018 /1 9 (the Code), supported by International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued under section 7 

of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.   

 

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is historic cost, 

modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non -current assets and financial 

instruments.  
 
2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure  
 

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash 

payments are made or received. In particular:  

 

¶ Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the 

provision of goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or servi ces are 

transferred to the service recipient in accordance with the performance 

obligations in the contract . 

¶ Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed ð where 

there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their 

consumption the y are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.  

¶ Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by 

employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received 

rather than when payments are made.  

¶ Interest receivable on in vestments and payable on borrowings is accounted 

for respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective 

interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows 

fixed or determined by the contract.  

¶ Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not 

been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is 

recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance 

of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income 

that might not be collected.  
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3. Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions 

repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  Cash equivalents 

are investments that mature w ithin three months or less from the date of acquisition 

and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of 

change in value.  

 

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank 

overdrafts that are r epayable on demand and form an integral part of the Councilõs 

cash management.  
 
4. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and 
Errors 
 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or 

to corre ct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for 

prospectively i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not 

give rise to prior period adjustment.  

 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by  proper 

accounting practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information 

about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Councilõs 

financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied 

retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and 

comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been 

applied.  

 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by 

amending ope ning balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.  
 
5. Charges to Revenue for Non -Current Assets  
 

Service revenue accounts, central support services and trading accounts are 

charged with the following amounts to reflect the cost of holding non -curren t assets 

during the year:  

 

¶ depreciation of the assets used by the service  

 

¶ revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there 

are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which losses 

can be written off  

 

¶ amortisation  of intangible assets used by the service.  

 

The Co uncil is not required to raise c ouncil tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and 

impairment losses or amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual 

contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement 

equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in 

accordance with statutory guidance.  This is referred to as the Minimum Revenue 

Provision (MRP) and Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP). The Co uncilõs policy on MRP 

is approved by Council in March each year as part of the Treasury Management 

Strategy.  Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are 
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replaced by the MRP and VRP, by way of an adjusting transaction between the 

Capital Adjustment Account and the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 

Reserves Statement, for the differences between the two.  

 
6. Council Tax and Non -Domestic Rates  
 

The Council (as the billing authority) acts as an agent, collecting council tax and 

non -domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of Lincolnshire County Council and Lincolnshire 

Police (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting council tax and 

NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate 

fund (the Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in 

respect of council tax and NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection 

Fund, all share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax 

and NDR coll ected could be less or more than predicted.  

 
Accounting for Council Tax and NDR  
 

The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement is the Councilõs share of accrued income for the year. 

However, regulations deter mine the amount of council tax and NDR that must be 

included in the Councilõs General Fund. Therefore, the difference between the 

income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the 

amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the 

Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the 

Movement in Reserves Statement.  

 

The Balance Sheet includes the Councilõs share of the end of year balances in 

respect of council tax and NDR rela ting to arrears, impairment allowances for 

doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments and appeals.  

 

Where debtor balances for the above are identified as impaired because of a 

likelihood arising from a past event that payment due under the statutory 

arra ngements will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made. The 

impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and 

the revised future cash flows.  
 
7. Employee Benefits  
 
Benefits payable during employment  
 

Short-term emp loyee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the 

year -end.  They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and 

paid sick leave, bonuses and non -monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current 

employees and are recognised as  an expense for services in the year in which 

employees render service to the Council.  An accrual is made for the cost of holiday 

entitlements or time off in lieu, earned by employees but not taken before the year -

end, which employees can carry forward in to the next financial year.  The accrual is 

made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, 

being the period in which employees take the benefit.  The accrual is charged to 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but  then reversed out through the 

Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in 

the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.  
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Termination benefits  
 

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decisi on by the Council to 

terminate an officerõs employment before the normal retirement date, or an 

officerõs decision to accept voluntary redundancy, and are charged on an accruals 

basis to the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, to a  corporate  

service segment for non -distributed costs in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw 

the offer of those benefits or when the Council recognises costs of restructuring.  

 

Where termination  benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory 

provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount 

payable by the Council to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount 

calculated according to relevant accounti ng standards.  In the Movement in 

Reserves Statement, transfers are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to 

remove notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits 

and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension f und and pensioners 

and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year -end.  

 
Post-Employment Benefits  
 

Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme, 

administered by Lincolnshire County Council.  This scheme provides defined b enefits 

to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for 

the Council.  

 
The Local Government Pension Scheme  
 

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme.  

 

The liabilities of the Lincolnshire County  Council pension fund attributable to the 

Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the protected 

unit method ð i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation 

to retirement benefits earned to date by emp loyees, based on assumptions about 

mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc. , and forecasts of projected earnings 

for current employees.  

 

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate 

determined by the pension sche me actuary (based on the yield of UK Government 

Bonds plus a ôcredit spreadõ allowance to reflect the extra risk involved in using AA 

corporate bond yields).  

 

The assets of the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund attributable to the 

Council are includ ed in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:  

¶ Quoted securities ð current bid price  

¶ Unquoted securities ð professional estimate  

¶ Unitised securities ð current bid price  

¶ Property ð market value.  
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The change in the net pension  liability is analysed int o the following components:  

 

¶ Current service cost ð the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service 

earned this year ð allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement to the services for which the employees worked  

 

¶ Past service cost ð the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions 

whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years ð debited to 

the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement a s part of Corporate Services  

 

¶ Net interest cost on the net defined benefit liability (asset), i.e. net interest 

expense for the Council ð the change during the period in the net defined 

benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time charged  to the 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement ð this is calculated by 

applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at 

the beginning of the period to the net d efined benefit liability (asset) at the 

beginning of the period ð taking into account any changes in the net defined 

benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefit 

payments.  

 

¶ Re-measurements comprising:  

 

¶ the return on p lan assets ð excluding amounts included in net interest on 

the defined benefit liability (asset) ð charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  

 

¶ actuarial gains and losses ð changes in the net pensions liability that arise  

because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last 

actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions 

ð charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure  

 

¶ Contributions paid to the Loca l Government Pension Fund ð cash paid as 

employerõs contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not 

accounted for as an expense.  

 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund 

balance to be charged wi th the amount payable by the Council to the pension 

fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to 

the relevant accounting standards.  In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this 

means that there are transfers to and fro m the Pensions Reserve to remove the 

notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for 

the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable 

but unpaid at the year -end. The negative balance that ar ises on the Pension 

Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being 

required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as 

benefits are earned by employees.  
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Discretionary Benefits  
 

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement 

benefits in the event of early retirements.  Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result 

of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of decision to make the 

award and a ccounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local 

Government Pension Scheme.  

 
8. Events After the Balance Sheet Date  
 

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and 

unfavourable, that occur between the end of the rep orting period and the date 

when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be 

identified:  

 

¶ Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 

reporting period ð the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such 

events  

 

¶ Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period ð 

the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a 

category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the 

no tes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.  

 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the 

Statement of Accounts.  

 
9. Financial Instruments  
 
Financial Liabilities  
 

Financial liabilities are r ecognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes 

a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument. They are initially 

measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges for 

interest payable are shown in the Fin ancing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, and are 

based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of 

interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 

estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at 

which it was originally recognised.  

 

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount 

presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable, with 

accrued interest due within one year shown under short term borrowings; and 

interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the 

amount payable for the year according to the loan agreeme nt.  

 

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund 

Balance to be spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the 

gain or loss over the unexpired life of the original loan. The reconciliation of amounts 

charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net 

charge required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or 
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from the Financial Instruments A djustment Account in the Movement in Reserves 

Statement.  

 
Financial Assets  
 

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach 

that reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow  

characteris tics. There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:  

¶ amortised cost  

¶ fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and  

¶ fair value through other comprehensive income  

 

The Councilõs business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash 

flows.  Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those 

whose contractual payments are not solely payment of principal and interest ( i.e. 

where the cash flows do not take the form of  a basic debt instrument).  
 
Financial Assets  Measured at Amortised Cost  
 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet 

when the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial 

instrument. They are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised 

cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are 

based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of  interest 

for the instrument. For most of the  financial assets held by the Council, this means 

that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal 

receivable, with interest receivable within one year shown under short term 

investmen ts and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.  

 

However, occasionally the Council may make loans to other parties (e.g. voluntary 

organisations) at less than marke t rates (soft loans). When soft loans are made, a loss 

is recorded in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the 

present value of the interest that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, 

resulting in a lower amortised cost than t he outstanding principal. Interest is credited 

to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement at a marginally higher effective rate of interest 

than the rate receivable, with the difference  serving to increase the amortised cost 

of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft 

loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial year ð 

the reconciliation of amounts debited and c redited to the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the General Fund 

Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment 

Account in the Movement in the Reserves Statement.  

 

Any gains a nd losses that arise on the de -recognition of an asset are credited or 

debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
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Expected Credit Loss Model  

 

The Council recognises expected  credit losses on all of its financial  assets held at 

amortised cost or where relevant FVOCI, either on a 12 -month or lifetime basis. The 

expected credit loss model also applies to lease receivables and contract assets. 

Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade rec eivables (debtors) held by the 

Authority.  

 

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash 

flows might not take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. 

Credit risk plays a crucial part in  assessing losses. Where risk has increased 

significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a 

lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are 

assessed on the basis of 12 -month expecte d losses. 

 

The Council has a number of loans to local organisations.  It may not have 

reasonable and verifiable information to support the measurement of lifetime losses 

on individual loans without undue cost or effort to support the measurement of 

lifetim e expected losses.  It has therefore assessed losses for the portfolio on a 

collective basis.  

 

The Council has grouped the loans into four groups for assessing loss allowances:  

¶ Group 1 ð Commercial investments in line with treasury management policy 

includ ing counterparties that have external credit ratings of A or better. Loss 

allowances will be assessed on a group basis using the simplified approach of 

collective assessment.  

¶ Group 2 ð Loans to related parties.   Loss allowances for these loans are 

assessed on an individual basis and / or an individual borrower basis.  

¶ Group 3 ð Money Market funds. Loss allowance will be assessed on market 

value of the investment in the fund.  

 
Financial Assets measured at fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVPL)  
 

Financial  assets that are measured at FVPL  are recognised on the Balance Sheet 

when the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial 

instrument and are initially measured and carried at fa ir value.  Fair value gains and 

losses are recognised  as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services 

 

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following 

techniques:  

 

¶ Instruments with quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets ð 

the market pr ice  

 

¶ Other instruments with fixed and determinable payments in active markets for 

identical assets ð discounted cash flow analysis  

 

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the 

following three levels:  

 

¶ Level 1 inputs ð qu oted prices (unadjusted) in active markets  for identical 

assets that the A uthority can access at the measurement date.  
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¶ Level 2 inputs ð inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that 

are observable for the asset, either directly or indirectl y. 

 

¶ Level 3 inputs ð unobservable inputs for the asset.  

 

Any gains and losses that arise on de -recognition of the asset are credited or 

debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 

Comprehensive In come and Expenditure Statemen t. 

 
10. Foreign Currency Translation  
 

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign 

currency, the transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable 

on the date the transaction was effective.  Where material amo unts in foreign 

currency are outstanding at the year -end, they are reconverted at the spot 

exchange rate at 31 March.  Resulting gains or losses, if material, are recognised in 

the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
11. Government Grants and Contributions  
 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third 

party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there 

is reasonable assur ance that:  

 

¶ The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments and  

¶ The grants or contributions will be received.  

 

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement until condit ions attached to the grant or 

contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the 

future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using 

the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by th e recipient as specified, 

or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.  

 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been 

satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When con ditions are satisfied, 

the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue 

grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non -Specific Grant Income (non ring -

fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive  Income and 

Expenditure Statement.  

 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 

Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to fina nce capital 

expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been 

applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital 

Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once  

they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.  
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Business Improvement Districts  
 

A Business Improvement District (BID) scheme applies across the whole of the 

Council. The scheme is funded by BID levy paid by non -domestic ratepayers. The 

Council act s as a principal under the scheme, and accounts for income received 

and expenditure incurred (including contributions to the BID project) within the 

relevant services within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Community Infrastructure Levy  
 

The Council has elected to charge a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).  The levy 

will be charged on new builds ( chargeable development for the A uthority) with 

appropriate planning consent.  The Council charges for and collects the levy, which 

is a plan ning charge.  The income from the levy will be used to fund a number of 

infrastructure projects (these include transport and schools) to support the 

development of the area.  

 

CIL is received without outstanding conditions; it is therefore recognised at the  

commencement date of the chargeable development in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement in accordance with the accounting policy for 

government grants and contributions set out above.  CIL charges will be largely 

used to fund capital expendi ture, however a proportion of the charges may be 

used to fund revenue expenditure  
 
12. Intangible Assets  
 

Intangible assets are assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable 

and controlled by the Council (e.g. software licences). Expenditure  on intangible 

assets is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or service 

potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council for a period of more than 

one year.  

 

Internally generated intangible assets are capitalised where  it is demonstrable that 

the project is technically feasible and is intended to be completed and the Council 

will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by 

being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised w here it can be 

measured reliably as attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during 

the development phase (research expenditure cannot be capitalised).  

 

Expenditure on the development of the Councilõs website is not capitalised as the 

website is primarily intended to promote or advertise the Councilõs services. 

 

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only re -valued where 

the fair value of the assets can be determined by reference to an active market.  In 

practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are 

therefore carried at amortised cost.  

 

Intangible assets are amortised over their useful life and charged to the relevant 

service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Any gain or loss arising 

on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other 

Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement.  
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Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure  for statutory 

purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not 

permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses 

are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 

Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any 

sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.  

 
13. Inventories and Long Term Contracts  
 

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisabl e 

value. The cost of inventories is assigned using either the FIFO or weighted average 

costing formula.  

 

Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus and 

Deficit on the Provision of Services with the value of works and service s received 

under the contract during the financial year.  

 
14. Investment Property  
 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for 

capital appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to 

facilitate the delivery of services or is held for sale.  

 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, 

based on the highest and best use value of the asset. Investment properties are not 

depreciated but are re -valued annually a ccording to market conditions to ensure 

that they are held at the highest and best use value on the Balance Sheet date. 

Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income 

and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and E xpenditure Statement. The 

same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.  

 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing 

and Investment Income and Expenditure line and result in a gain for the General 

Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted 

by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The 

gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the 

Movement in Reserves St atement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account 

and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.  
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15. Joint Operations  
 

Joint Operations are arrangements where the parties that have joint control of the 

arrangement have righ ts to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the 

arrangement.  The activities undertaken by the Council in conjunction with other 

joint operators involve the use of the assets and resources of those joint operators.  In 

relation to its inter est in a joint operation, the C ouncil as a joint operator recognises:  

 

¶ Its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly.  

¶ Its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly.  

¶ Its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint 

operation.  

¶ Its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation.  

¶ Its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.  
 
16. Leases  
 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of t he lease transfer 

substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or 

equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating 

leases. 

 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the lan d and buildings elements are 

considered separately for classification.  

 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use 

an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment 

of the arrangeme nt is dependent on the use of specific assets.  

 
The Council as Lessee  
 
Finance Leases  
 

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the 

Balance Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the 

leaseõs inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The 

asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial 

direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums 

paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent 

rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.  

 

Lease payments are apportioned between:  

 

¶ A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment 

ð applied to write down the lease liability, and  

 

¶ A financing charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).  

 

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised u nder finance leases is accounted for 

using the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being 

charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the assetõs estimated useful life 
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(where ownership of the asset does not transfer to  the Council at the end of the 

lease period).  

 

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation 

and impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual 

contribution (Voluntary Revenue Provision - VRP) is made from revenue funds 

towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. 

Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by the 

VRP in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transact ion with the 

Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the 

difference between the two.  

 
Operating Leases  
 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement as an expense of the service benefiting from use of the 

leased asset. Charges are made on a straight -line b asis over the term of the lease,  

even if this doesnõt match the pattern of payments. 
 
The Council as Lessor  
 
Finance Leases  
 

Where the Council grants a finance lease over  a property or an item of plant or 

equipment, the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal.  At 

the commencement of the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance 

Sheet is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure l ine in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain and loss on disposal.  A gain, 

representing the Councilõs net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or 

loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of 

disposal), matched by a long -term lease debtor in the Balance Sheet.  

 

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:  

 

¶ A charge for the acquisiti on of the interest in the property ð applied to write 

down the lease debtor (together with any premiums received), and  

 

¶ Finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stateme nt).  

 

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on 

disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is 

required to be treated as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, 

this is posted  out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipt Reserve in the 

Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in relation to the leased 

asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted 

out of the Gene ral Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the 

Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are received, the 

element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write down the 

lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the 

Capital Receipts Reserve.  
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The written -off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of 

assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. 

Amounts a re therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the 

General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserve Statement.  

 
Operating Leases  
 

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or 

equipment, the asset is re tained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to 

the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight -line basis over the life of the 

lease. Initial direct costs incurred in neg otiating and arranging the lease are added 

to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the 

lease term on the same basis as rental income.  

 
17. Overheads and Support Services  
 

The cost of overheads and support services are charg ed to service segments in 

accordance with the Councilõs arrangements for accountability and financial 

performance.  
 
18. Non -Current Assets ð Property, Plant and Equipment  

 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the supply of services, for 

rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used 

during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.  

 
Recognition  
 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant or 

Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the 

future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to 

the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that 

main tains but does not add to an assetõs potential to deliver future economic 

benefits or service potential (i.e. Repairs and maintenance) is charged as an 

expense when it is incurred.  

 
Measurement  
 

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:  

¶ The purcha se price  

¶ Any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition 

necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 

management  

¶ The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and 

restoring the si te on which it is located.  

 

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under 

construction.  
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The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its current 

value, unless the acquisition does not have commercia l substance (i.e. it will not 

lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an 

asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount 

of the asset given up by the Council.  

 

Donated assets ar e measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair 

value and any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non -Specific 

Grant Income line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless 

the donation has been made conditi onally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is 

held in the Donated Assets Account. Where gains are credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the 

General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in t he Movement in 

Reserves Statement.  

 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:  

 

¶ Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction ð depreciated 

historical cost  

¶ Dwellings ð current  value, determined usin g the basis of existing use value for 

social housing (EUV -SH) 

¶ Surplus Assets ð the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated 

at the highest and best use from a market participants perspective  

¶ All other assets ð current  value, determined as th e amount that would be 

paid for the asset in its existing use (existing use value ð EUV). 

 

Where there is no market -based evidence of current value because of the specialist 

nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of 

c urrent value.  

 

For non -property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), 

depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value.  

 

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re -valued sufficiently 

regularly  to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their 

current value at the year -end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in 

valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise 

unrealised gains. However,  in exceptional circumstances, gains may be credited to 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the 

reversal of a loss previously charged to services.  

 

When decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follo ws: 

 

¶ Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 

Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that 

balance, up to the amount of the accumulated gains.  

 

¶ Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Res erve or an insufficient 

balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the 

relevant service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement.  
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The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 

on ly, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have 

been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.  

 
Impairment  
 

Assets are reviewed at each year -end for evidence of reductions in value i.e. 

impairment. Where impairment i s identified, the recoverable amount of the asset is 

estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an 

impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.  

 

When impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:  

 

¶ Where there is a balance in the revaluation gains for the asset in the 

Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against 

that balance, up to the amount of the accumulated gains.  

 

¶ Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserv e or an insufficient 

balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the 

relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement.  

 

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the 

relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up 

to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been 

charged if the loss had not been recognised.  
 
Depreciation  
 

Depreciation is provided for on al l Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the 

systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An 

exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold 

land and certain Community Assets) and assets  that are not yet available for use 

(i.e. assets under construction).  

 

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:  

 

¶ Dwellings and Other buildings ð straight -line allocation over the useful life of 

the property as estimated by the Valuer  

¶ Vehicles, pl ant, furniture and equipment ð straight -line allocation over the 

useful life of each class of asset  

 

Where an item of property, plant or equipment asset has major components whose 

cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the component s are 

depreciated separately.   

 

In relation to Council Dwellings, depreciation is based on the Existing Use Social 

Housing Value (EU -SHV) on the components, deemed to be land and buildings.  

 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference 

between the current value depreciation charge on assets and the depreciation 
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that would have been charged based on their historical cost, being transferred 

each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.  
  
19. Heritage Assets 
 

The Council holds a number of Heritage Assets, which can be grouped into the 

following categories:  

¶ Civic Insignia  

¶ Art and Sculptures  

¶ Musical Instruments  

¶ Vehicles  

¶ Ancient Monuments and War Memorials  

¶ Miscellaneous  

 

These are not held in a single coll ection but in a number of appropriate locations, 

where they are considered to contribute to increasing the knowledge, 

understanding and appreciation of the Councilõs history and local area. 

 

Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatm ent of 

revaluation gains and losses) in accordance with the Councilõs accounting policies 

on Property, Plant and Equipment. However, some of the measurement rules are 

relaxed in relation to heritage assets as detailed below.  

 

¶ Civic Insignia  
 

The collection  of civic insignia includes the Mayorõs and Sheriffõs badges and 

chains of office, mace and ceremonial swords. These items are reported in the 

Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based on market values. These 

insurance valuations are subject to p eriodic reviews by a specialist valuer.  The 

civic insignia are deemed to have indeterminate lives and a high residual value; 

hence the Council does not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation.  

 

¶ Art and Sculptures  
 

This category includes paintings a nd a number of public art works such as statues 

and sculptures. Where a valuation is available e.g. an insurance valuation, the 

asset is reported in the balance sheet at this valuation. However, for a number of 

public art sculptures and statues, no cost or  valuation information is available 

and consequently, these assets are not recognised in the balance sheet. Where 

artworks are recognised, they are deemed to have indeterminate lives and the 

Council does not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation.  
 

¶ Musical Instruments  
 

The Council holds a Steinway grand piano at the Drill Hall and a Stradivarius 

violin, which is on loan to the Halle orchestra. These items are reported in the 

Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based on market values. These  

insurance valuations are subject to periodic reviews by a specialist valuer. The 

instruments are deemed to have indeterminate lives and a high residual value; 

hence the Council does not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation.  
 

¶ Vehicles  
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The Counci l holds one diesel locomotive as a heritage asset. This is reported in 

the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based on market values. The 

insurance valuations are subject to periodic reviews by a specialist valuer. The 

vehicle is deemed to have indeterminate life as it is not in operation but is on 

display; hence the Council does not consider it appropriate to charge 

depreciation.  

 

¶ Ancient Monuments and War Memorials  
 

This category includes various roman ruins and ancient structures and four war 

memorials. The Council does not consider that reliable cost or valuation 

information can be obtained for the items in this category. This is because of the 

nature of the assets held and the lack of market values. Consequently, these 

assets are not recognis ed in the Balance Sheet.  
 

¶ Miscellaneous  
 

This category includes any other assets which are being held for their 

contribution to knowledge and culture but do not readily fall into the above 

categories. One example is the collection of Books of Remembrance h eld at the 

City crematorium.  These items are reported in the Balance Sheet at either cost 

or insurance valuation where material. No depreciation is charged on these 

assets. 

 
Heritage Assets ð General  
 

The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed w here there is evidence of 

impairment e.g. where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or 

where doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and 

measured in accordance with the Councilõs accounting policies on impairment. The 

Council may occasionally dispose of heritage assets which are unsuitable for public 

display or to an appropriate body which will ensure the asset is maintained and 

displayed within a suitable collection e.g. to a museum or historical trust. The 

proceeds of such items are accounted for in accordance with the Councilõs 

accounting policy on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment. Disposal proceeds 

are disclosed separately in the notes to the financial statements and are accounted 

for in accordance w ith statutory accounting requirements relating to capital 

expenditure and capital receipts.   
 
20. Disposals and Non -Current Assets Held for Sale  
  

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered 

principally through a sale trans action rather than through its continuing use, it is 

reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale.  

 

The asset is re-valued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the 

lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Where there is a subs equent 

decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  Gains in 

fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised losse s 

in the Surplus and Deficit on Provision of Services.  Depreciation is not charged on 

Assets Held for Sale.  
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If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are 

reclassified back to non -current assets and valued at the  lower of their carrying 

amount before they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, 

amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been 

classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of  the decision 

not to sell.  

 

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for 

sale. 

 

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset 

in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipm ent or Assets Held for Sale) 

is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  Receipts from the 

disposal (if any) are credited to the same line in the Com prehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off 

against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation 

gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are tran sferred to the 

Capital Adjustment Account.  

 

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital 

receipts. A proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals (75% for dwellings, 50% 

for land and other assets, net of statutory  deductions and allowances) is payable to 

the Government. The balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital 

Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside 

to reduce the Councilõs underlying need to borrow. Receipts are transferred to the 

Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  

 

The written -off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of 

assets is fully provided under separate arrangements for  capital financing. Amounts 

are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account in the General Fund Balance in 

the Movement in Reserves Statement.  

 
21. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets  
 
Provisions  
 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal 

or constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of 

economic benefits, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation. For instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could 

eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.  

 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council 

becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the 

Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into 

account relevant risks and uncertainties.  

 

When payments are eventually made, they are charge d to the provision carried in 

the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial 

year ð where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will 
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not now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipate d is made), the provision 

is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.  

 

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be 

recovered from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised 

as inco me for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will 

be received if the Council settles the obligation.  

 
Contingent Liabilities  
 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a 

possible ob ligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or 

otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.  

Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise 

be made but either  it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or 

the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.  

 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note 

to the accounts.  
 
Contingent Assets  
 

A co ntingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a 

possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or 

otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.  

 

Contingent assets a re not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note 

to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic 

benefits.  
 
22. Reserves  
 

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to 

cover co ntingencies.  Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the 

General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  When expenditure 

to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in 

that year to score ag ainst the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  The reserve is then 

appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 

Statement so that there is no net charge again st council tax for the expenditure.  

 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non -current 

assets, financial instruments, and retirement and employee benefits and do not 

represent usable resources for the Council ð these reserves are  explained in the 

relevant policies.  

 
23. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute  
  

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory 

provisions but that does not result in the creation of a non -current asset has been 

charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement in the year.  Where the Council has determined to meet the 

cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in 
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the Move ment in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital 

Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no 

impact on the level of council tax.  
 
24. VAT  
 

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it  is not recoverable 

from HM Revenue and Customs.  VAT receivable is excluded from income.  

 
25. Fair Value  
 

The Council measures some of its non -financial assets, such as surplus assets and 

investment properties, and some of its financial instruments at fair va lue at the end 

of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 

asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 

participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that 

the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:  

¶ In the principal market for the asset or liability or  

¶ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market 

for the asset or liability.  

The Council measures the  fair value of an asset or liability on the same basis that 

market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability (assuming they were 

acting in their economic best interest).  

 

When measuring the fair value of a non -financial asset, the Council t akes into 

account a market participantõs ability to generate economic benefits by using the 

asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 

would use the asset in its highest and best use.  

 

The Council uses appropriate  valuation techniques, which takes into account the 

three levels of inputs to valuations for fair value assets:  

¶ Level 1 ð quoted prices  in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

that the Council can assess at the measurement date.  

¶ Level 2 ð inp uts other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 

observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.  

¶ Level 3 ð unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.  

 

Note 2 ð Accounting Standards Issued  But Have Not Yet Been Adopte d 

 

The Code of Practice on Local Authority  Accounting in  the United Kingdom 201 9/ 20 

(the Code) has introduced  new and amended accounting standards as follows:  

 

Å Amendments to IAS40 ð Investment Properties: Transfers of investment 

Property.  

 

Å Annual Improve ments to IFRS Standards 2014 ð 2016 Cycle.  

 

Å IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration.  

 

Å IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income tax Treatments.  
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Å Amendments to IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments: Prepayment Features with 

Negative Compensation  

 

These accounting changes which will be required from 1 April 2019.  

 

The adoption of these new and amended standards is  not expected to have a 

material impact on the Councilõs Statement of Accounts.   
 

Note 3 ð Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Polic ies 

 

In applying the accounting policies in Note 1, the Council has had to make certain 

judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future 

events.  

 

The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:  

 

¶ Local Govern ment funding  - There is a high degree of uncertainty about the 

future levels of funding for local government. However, the Council has 

determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication 

that the assets of the Council might be i mpaired as a result of a need to close 

facilities or reduce levels of service provision.  

 

¶ Group Boundaries  - The Council has a collaborative arrangement with 

Lincolnshire County Council, North Kesteven and West Lindsey District Council 

to provide the Centr al Lincolnshire Joint Planning Unit.  This arrangement is 

hosted by North Kesteven District Council. The Council also has a 

collaborative arrangement with North Kesteven to provide a shared 

Revenues and Benefits Service. This shared service is hosted by th e City of 

Lincoln Council. Both of these arrangements are governed through a Joint 

Committee representing each of the partner authorities. These arrangeme nts 

are considered as a Joint Operation, where ventures use their own resources 

to undertake an activi ty subject to joint control, and as such do not require 

consolidation into the Councilõs accounts.  The Councilõs proportion of 

activity is accounted for separately within the Core Financial Statements.  

 

¶ Leases - The Council has examined its leases, and cl assified them as either 

operational or finance leases. In some cases the lease transaction is not 

always conclusive and the Council uses judgement in determining whether 

the lease is a finance lease arrangement that transfers substantially all the 

risks and rewards incidental to ownership. In reassessing the lease the Council 

has estimated the implied interest rate within the lease to calculate interest 

and principal payments.  

 

¶ Investments  - Investment in banks and other financial institutions are secure 

an d will not suffer impairments.  

 

¶ Pensions ð there is inclusion in the Pension notes for impact s resulting from the 

recent age discrimination case known as the McCloud judgement.   

Following financial evaluation  by Hymans Robertson the likely impact on the  

Local Government Pension F und or individual authorities within the fund  has 

been adjusted for within the accounts .   
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Note 4 ð Assumptions  Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty  

 

The Statement of Accounts contains estimate d figures that are based on 

assumptions made by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. 

Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and 

other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be deter mined with 

certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and 

estimates.  

 

The items in the Councilõs Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019 for which there is a 

significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:  

 
Item  Uncertainties  Effect if Actual Results Differ 

from Assumptions  

Business Rates 

 

(Balance Sheet 31 

March 201 9 ð 

Provision for Business 

Rate Appeals 

£3.286m)  

Since the introduction of the Business 

Rates Retention Scheme effective 

from April 2013, local authorities are 

liable for successful appeals against 

business rates charges to businesses in 

2018/1 9 and earlier financial years in 

their proportionate share.  Therefore a 

provision has been recognised for the 

best estimate of the amo unt that 

businesses have been overcharged 

up to the 31 st March 201 9.  A third -

party independent specialist has  

been used to estimate the required 

provision using the latest Valuation 

Office ratings list of appeals and an 

analysis of successful appeals to d ate.   

The Councilõs share (60%) of 

the balance of business rates 

appeals at 31 March 201 9 

amounted to £ 3.286m, an 

increase  of £0.230m (7.5%) 

from the previous year.  This is 

mainly due to being in a 

ôpilotõ which increased the 

Councilõs share of appeals 

from 40% to 60%.  An increase 

or reduction of 1 0% of the 

estimated provision would 

increas e/decrease  the 

Councilõs share of NNDR 

appeals provision by 

£0.329m. 

Property, Plant and 

Equipment  (PPE) 

 

(Balance Sheet 31 

March 201 9 ð PPE 

£362m)  

Assets are depreci ated over useful 

lives that are dependent on 

assumptions about the levels of repairs 

and maintenance that will be 

incurred in relation to individual assets. 

The current economic climate makes 

it uncertain that the Cou ncil will be 

able to sustain it s curren t spending on 

repairs and maintenance, bringing 

into doubt the useful lives assigned to 

the assets . 

 

If the useful lives of the assets 

reduce, depreciation 

increases and the carrying 

amount of the assets falls.  

It is estimated that the 

annual depreciation  charge 

for buildings would increase 

by £ 0.60m and for council 

dwellings £0.202m for every 

year that the useful lives had 

to be reduced . 

Assets held for sale 

and investment 

properties  

 

(Balance Sheet 31 

March 201 9 

- assets held for 

sale £1.5m 

- Investment 

pro perties 

£30.5m) 

 

Assets classified as Held for Sale or as 

Investment Property are carried at fair 

value based on a recently observed 

market price. Market prices can 

fluctuate considerably due to global 

events. The value of t hese assets was 

current at the B alance Sheet date, 

but it cannot be determined for how 

long this value will be correct.   
 

A 1% reduction in the value 

of investment properties 

would result in a charge to 

the Comprehensive Income 

& Expenditure Statement  of 

£0.32m; a 1% increase in 

value wo uld result in th e 

recognition of a gain of 

£0.32m in the Comprehensive 

Income & Expenditure 

Statement .  
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Arrears  

 

Balance Sheet 31  

March 201 9  - 

Debtors  total of 

£9.78m include s 

£4.798m debtors 

(subject to arrears)  

 

As at 31 March 201 8, the Council had 

a  balance on current  debtors of 

£4.798m. A review of significant 

balances suggested that an 

impairment of doubtful debts of 

£1.954m was required . 

 

If collection rates were to 

deteriorate  by 5% the 

amount of the impairment of 

doubtful debts would require 

an additional £ 0.23m to be 

set aside as an allowance.  

Pension Liability  

 

(Balance Sheet 31 

March 201 9  - 

pensions liability 

£100.69m)  

Estimation of the net liability to pay 

pensions depends on a number of 

complex judgements relating to the 

discount rate use d, the rate at which 

salaries are projected to increase, 

changes in retirement ages, mortality 

rates and the expected return on 

pension fund assets. A firm of 

consulting actuaries (Hymans 

Robertson LLP) is engaged to provide 

the Council with expert advice about 

the assumptions to be applied. For 

more information on the Defined 

Benefit Pension Scheme please refer 

to note 4 4. 

 

The effects on the net 

pensionsõ liability of changes 

in individual assumptions can 

be m easured. For instance, a 

0.5% decrease in the 

discount rate  assumption 

would result in a n increa se in 

the pension liability of 

£23.785m. 

 

Investments  

 

(Balance Sheet 31 

March 201 9  

- Short term 

investments 

£29.2m  

- Long term 

investments 

£0.8m)  

At 31 Mar ch 201 8, the Council held 

£29.216m of short term inv estments . 

These comprise  £19.206m invested  in 

AAA -rated instant access Money 

Market Funds  and  £10.01m invested in 

A-rated UK bank s, all for periods of up 

to 1 year.   

As most of the investments 

are either in AAA -rated 

MMFõs or short term deposits 

in A-rate d UK banks , the risk 

of impairment is considered 

to be minimal.   
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Note 5 ð Prior Period Adjustment  

 

During 2018/19 a review of the A sset Register was undertaken which identified that  

an adjustment was  needed to align the entries on the register with the financial 

system.  There is no material impact on the  net assets or total reserves of the council  

and restatement  affects note 26  to the A ccounts.  
 

A transfer of balances between the Revaluation Reserve and the Capital 

Adjustment account of £1.541m was  required.  This has been reflected in a restated 

2017/18 balance sheet and within notes 26a and 26b of the accounts . 
 

The CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 

requires that  an authority must present a balance sheet at  the beginning of the 

preceding period when it makes a material retrospective restatement.  As the 

identified errors affect only the  2017/18 comparative year, opening balances for 

unusable reserves have been restated for the earliest prior period presented , with 

the inclusion of a restated 2017/18 balance sheet.  The table below shows the effect 

of the entries restated in the 2017/18 balance sheet:  

 

 2017/18  

 Original  Restated  Restatement 

amount  

 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 

Revaluation Reserve  22,145 20,604 (1,541) 

Capital Adjustment Account  228,813 230,354 1,541 

Effect on Unusable Reserves    Nil 

 

 

Note 6 ð Events after the Balance Sheet Date  

 

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Chief Finance Officer  on 

31st May  2019. Events taking place a fter this date are not reflected in the financial 

statements or notes. Where events taking place before this date provided 

information about conditions existing at 31 st March 201 9, the figures in the financial 

statements and notes have been adjusted in all  material respects to reflect the 

impact of this information.  
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               Note 7 ð Expendit ure and Funding Analysis  
 31 March 2018  

 

  31 March 2019   

Net   Adjustments  Net   Net   Adjustments  Net  

Expenditure 

Chargeable to 

General Fund and 

HRA Balanc es 

Movement of 

Trading A/Cõs 

& Levies etc.  

Between the 

Funding and 

Accounting Basis  

Expenditure in the 

Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement   

Expenditure 

Chargeable to 

General Fund 

and HRA 

Balances  

Movement 

of Trading 

A/Cõs & 

Levies etc.  

Between t he 

Funding and 

Accounting 

Basis 

Expenditure in the 

Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement  

£'000 Ãõ000 £'000 £'000  £'000 Ãõ000 £'000 £'000 

3,464 967 1,367 5,798 Chief Executiveõs Directorate 6,166 519 (171) 6,514 

736 0 274 1,010 Housing and Rege neration  296 0 496 792 

(9,953) 0 (3,224) (13,177) Housing Revenue Account (HRA)  (2,997) 0 (4,614) (7,611) 

5,408 2 3,302 8,712 Communities and Environment  5,492 107 2,181 7,780 

1,124 0 4,221 5,345 Major Developments  452 0 137 589 

1,430 (803) (896) (269) Corporate Services  43 818 (132) 729 

2,209 166 5,044 7,419 Net Cost Of Services  9,452 1,444 (2,103) 8,793 

         

(947) (166) (12,520) (13,633) Other Income and Expenditure  (11,471) (1,444) (616) (13,531) 

1,262 0 (7,476)  (6,214) 
(Surplus) or Deficit o n Provision of 

Services  
(2,019) 0 (2,719) (4,738) 

GF  HRA Total  GF  HRA Total 

(9,332) 
 

(4,729) (14,061) Opening Balance  (7,947) 
 

(4,854) (12,801) 

1,386 
 

125 1,260 
Less/ Plus Surplus or (Deficit) in 

Year  

 
(2,337) 

 
318 (2,019) 

(7,947)  (4,854) (12,801) Closing Balance at 31 March  (10,284)  (4,536) (14,820) 

  

 

 

This analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants, counc il tax and business rates) 

by Councils in comparison with those resources consumed or earned b y Councils in accordance with generally accepted 

practices.  The Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes 

between the Council's different categories of expenditure and income. Income and expe nditure accounted for under generally 

accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Further analysis  

can be found in Note 8.  
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Note 7 A ð Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis   

 

This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General Fund and HRA 

Balances to arrive at the amounts in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement. The relevant transfers between 

reserves are explained in  the Movement in Reserves Statement.  

 
ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN FUNDING AND ACCOUNTING BASIS 

2017/18   2018/19  

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes 

Net Change 

for the 

Pensions 

Adjustments  

Other 

Differences  

Total 

Adjustments  

Adjustments from 

General Fund to arrive 

at the Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure Statement 

amounts  

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes 

Net Change for 

the Pensions 

Adjustments  

Other 

Differences  

Total 

Adjustments  

Ãõ000s Ãõ000s Ãõ000s Ãõ000s  Ãõ000s Ãõ000s Ãõ000s Ãõ000s 

330 1,009 28 1,367 
Chief Executiveõs 

Directorate  
(1,153) 992 (10) (171) 

2 262 10 274 
Housing and 

Regeneration  
187 307 2 496 

(4,595) 1,381 (10) (3,224)  
Housing Revenue 

Account (HRA)  
(5,878) 1,266 (2) (4,614) 

2,471 843 (12) 3,302 
Communities and 

Environment  
1,389 794 (2) 2,181 

4,172 55 (6) 4,221 Major Developments  74 61 2 137 

0 (896) 0 (896)  Corporate  0 (132) 0 (132) 

2,380 2,654 10 5,044 Net Cost of Services  (5,381) 3,288 (10) (2,103) 

(12,286) 1,365 (1,599) (12,520) 

Other Income & 

Expenditure from the 

Funding Analysis  

(1,369) 1,499 (746) (616) 

(9,906)  4,019 (1,589)  (7,476)  

Difference between 

General Fund Surplus /  

Deficit and CIES 

Income & Expenditure 

Statement Surplus/  

Deficit  

(6,750) 4,787 (756) (2,719) 
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Note 7 B ð Segmental Income Analysis  

 

Income received on a segmental basi s is analysed below:  

 

 Income from 
Services  

Income from 
Services  

Services  2017/1 8 2018/1 9 

 Ãõ000s Ãõ000s 

   

Chief Executiveõs Directorate (4,759) (4,787) 

Housing & Regeneration  (588) (896) 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)  (28,990) (28,911) 

Communities & Environment  (9,027) (10,355) 

Major Developments  0 (156) 

Corporate  (11) (0) 

Total Income analysed on a 
Segmental Basis  

(43,374)  (45,104) 

 

 

Note 8 ð Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature  

 

The Authorityõs expenditure and income is analysed as follows: 

 

 2017/18  2018/19  

 Ãõ000s Ãõ000s 

Expenditure/ Income    

Expenditure    

Employee Benefit Expenses  23,026 24,528 

Other Services Expenses  66,111 65,651 

Support Service Recharges  3,054 2,672 

Depreciation, Amortisation and 

Impairment  
4,743 5,768 

Inte rest Payments  9,569 9,144 

Precepts and Levies  803 818 

Payments to Housing Capital 

Receipts Pool  
529 760 

Gain/(loss)  on Disposal of Assets  (985) (560) 

Total Expenditure  106,851 108,781 

Income    

Fees, Charges and other Service 

Income  
(59,631) (61,920) 

Interest and Investment Income  (3,493) (3,679) 

Income from Council Tax and 

Non -Domestic Rates  
(10,283) (15,409) 

Government Grants and 

Contributions  
(39,658) (32,512) 

Total Income  (113,065)  (113,520) 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 
of Services  

(6,214) (4,739) 
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Note 9 ð Adjustment between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations  

 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income 

and expenditure recognised by the Council in year in accordance with proper 

accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as 

being available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.  

The following sets out a description of the reserves that the adjustments are made 

against.   

General Fund Balance  

The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of an authority are 

required to be paid and out of which all liabilities of the Authority are to be met, 

except to the extent that statutory rules might provide otherwi se. These rules can 

also specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments should impact on 

the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper 

accounting practice. The General Fund Balance therefore summarises the 

resources that the Council is statutorily empowered to spend on its services or on 

capital investment (or the deficit of resources that the Council is required to 

recover) at  the end of the financial year ( the balance is not available to be 

ap plied to funding H RA services).  

Housing Revenue Account Balance  

 

The Housing Revenue Account Balance reflects the statutory obligation to maintain 

a revenue account for local authority council housing provision in accordance with 

Part VI of the Local Government and Housing  Act 1989. It contains the balance of 

income and expenditure as defined by the 1989 Act that is available to fund future 

expenditure in connection with the Councilõs landlord function or (where in deficit) 

that is required to be recovered from tenants in f uture years.  

Major Repairs Reserve  

 

The Authority is required to maintain the Major Repairs Reserve, which controls an 

element of the capital resources limited to being used on capital expenditure on 

HRA assets or the financing of historical capital expen diture by the HRA. The 

balance shows the capital resources that have yet to be applied at the year -end.  

Capital Receipts Reserve  

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other 

assets, which are restricted by statute fro m being used other than to fund new 

capital expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The 

balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these 

purposes at the year -end.  

Capital Grants Unapplied  

 

The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants and contributions 

received towards capital projects for which the Council has met the conditions that 

would otherwise require repayment of the monies but which have yet to be applied 
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to meet expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital 

expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which this 

can take place.  
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2018/19  Usable Reserves  

 

General  

Fund 

Balance  

Housing  

Revenue 

Account  

Capital  

Receipts 

Reserve 

Major  

Repairs 

Reserve 

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied  

Movement  

In Unusable 

Reserves 

 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 

Adjustments to Revenue Resources        

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive 

Income Statemen t are different from revenue for the year calculated in 

accordance with statutory requirements:  
      

Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve)  3,521 1,266 0 0 0 4,787 

Financial Instruments (transferred to the Financial Instruments A djustments 

Account)  
(2) 0 0 0 0 (2) 

Council Tax and NNDR transfers to (or from ) the Collection Fund Adjustment 

Account  
(746) 0 0 0 0 (746) 

Holiday Pay (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve)  (8) (2) 0 0 0 (10) 

Reversal of entries included in t he Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

in relation to capital expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital 

Adjustment Account)  

2,337 172 0 6,206 1,183 9,898 

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources  5,102 1,436 0 6,206 1,183 13,927 

Adjust ments between Revenue and Capital Resources        

Transfer of non -current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the Capital 

Receipts Reserve  
(2,364) (2,067) 4,431 0 0 0 

Payments to the Government Housing Receipts Pool (funded by a transfer 

from the Capital  Receipts Reserve)  
760 0 (760) 0 0 0 

Posting of HRA resources to the Major Repairs Reserve  0 (4,506) 0 (212) 0 (4,718) 

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital 

Adjustment Account)  
(842) 0 (150) 0 0 (992) 

Capital expenditu re financed from revenue balances (transfer to the Capital 

Adjustment Account)  
(238) 0 (7) 0 0 (245) 

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources  (2,684) (6,573) 3,514 (212) 0 (5,955) 

Adjustments to Capital Resources        
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2018/19  Usable Reserves  

 

General  

Fund 

Balance  

Housing  

Revenue 

Account  

Capital  

Receipts 

Reserve 

Major  

Repairs 

Reserve 

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied  

Movement  

In Unusable 

Reserves 

 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure  0 0 (8,185) 0 0 (8,185) 

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance capital expenditure  0 0 0 (13,160) 0 (13,160)  

Application of Capital grants to finance capital expenditure  0 0 0 0 (1,004) (1,004) 

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources  0 0 (8,185) (13,160)  (1,004) (22,349) 

Total Adjustments  2,418 (5,137) (4,671) (7,166) 179 (14,377)  
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2017/18  Usable Reserves  

 

General  

Fund 

Balance  

Housing  

Revenue 

Account  

Capital  

Receipts 

Reserve  

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve 

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied  

Movement  

In Unusable 

Reserves 

 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 

Adjustments to Revenue Resources        

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive 

Income Statement are dif ferent from revenue for the year calculated in 

accordance with statutory requirements:  
      

Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve)  2,638 1,381 0 0 0 4,019 

Financial Instruments (transferred to the Financial Instruments Adjustment s 

Account)  
(2) 0 0 0 0 (2) 

Council Tax and NNDR (transfers to (or from) the  Collection Fund Adjustment 

Account)  
(1,599) 0 0 0 0 (1,599) 

Holiday Pay (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve)  20 (10) 0 0 0 10 

Reversal of entries included in the Su rplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services in relation to capital expenditure (these items are charged to the 

Capital Adjustment Account)  

4,104 (7,728) 0 0 3,002 (622) 

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources  5,161 (6,357) 0 0 3,002 1,806 

Adjustments be tween Revenue and Capital Resources       0 

Transfer of non -current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the Capital 

Receipts Reserve  
(1,370) (3,830) 5,200 0 0 0 

Payments to the Government Housing Receipts Pool (funded by a transfer 

from the Capital Receip ts Reserve) 
529 0 (529) 0 0 0 

Posting of HRA resources to the Major Repairs Reserve  0 (765) 0 639 0 (126) 

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital 

Adjustment Account)  
(484) 0 (150) 0 0 (634) 

Capital expenditure financed f rom revenue balances (transfer to the 

Capital Adjustment Account)  
(360) 0 0 0 0 (360) 

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources  (1,685) (4,595) 4,521 639 0 (1,120) 
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2017/18  Usable Reserves  

 

General  

Fund 

Balance  

Housing  

Revenue 

Account  

Capital  

Receipts 

Reserve  

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve 

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied  

Movement  

In Unusable 

Reserves 

 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 

Adjustments to Capital Resources        

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure  0 0 (4,674) 0 0 (4,674) 

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance capital expenditure  0 0 0 0 0 0 

Application of Capital grants to finance capital expenditure  0 0 0 0 (3,016) (3,016) 

Total Adjustments to Capital Resource s 0 0 (4,674) 0 (3,016)  (7,690) 

Total Adjustments  3,476 (10,952)  (153) 639 (14) (7,004) 



60  

S T A T E M E N T  O F  A C C O U N T S  

2 0 1 8 / 1 9  

 

Note 10 ð Movements in Earmarked Reserves  

 

These amounts are held to meet expenditure in future financial years. The movement s on these Revenue Reserve Accounts d uring the year 

have been as follows:   

 
 Balance  Appropriations  Balance  Movements  Appropriations  Balance  

 @ 31.03.17 Transfers In  Transfers Out @ 31.03.18 
 Transfers 

In 

Transfers 

Out  

@31.03.19 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 

General Fund          

Business Rates Volatility  709 450 (621) 539 0 917 0 1,456 

Strategic Projects  1,371 0 (875) 496 0 0 (193) 303 

Budget Carry Forwards  340 231 (133) 324 (46) 47 (130) 194 

Grants & Contributions  363 483 (59) 787 0 850 (93) 1,545 

Invest to Save (GF)  196 171 (53) 307 69 137 (86) 427 

Mercury Abatement  346 91 (60) 378 0 94 (58) 414 

Strategic Growth (GF)  424 100 (423) 100 0 0 (86) 14 

Unused DRF 277 172 (352) 221 109 111 (238) 203 

Backdated Rent Review  220 0 0 220 0 0 0 220 

Funding for Strategic Priori ties 121 0 (153) 28 (60) 1,337 (91) 1,214 

IT Reserve 220 100 (39) 217 0 100 (317) 0 

Revenues & Benefits Shared Service  134 50 (21) 163 0 45 (45) 163 

Asset Improvement  90 0 (18) 72 0 0 (17) 55 

Transport Hub Mitigation  124 0 (124) 0 0 0 0 0 

Tree Risk Assessment 97 20 (11) 106 0 37 (35) 108 

MA Reserve  52 0 0 51 0 0 (51) 0 

Organisational Development  47 0 (39) 8 0 76 0 85 

Mayoral Car  47 0 0 47 0 0 0 47 

Yarborough Leisure Centre  2 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 

Private Sector Stock Condition Survey  51 12 0 63 0 12 (30) 45 

Property Searches  36 0 0 36 0 0 (32) 4 

Managed Workspace  35 0 0 35 0 0 (35) 0 

County Wide Broadband Initiative  34 0 (34) 0 0 0 (0) 0 

Boston Audit Contract  14 0 0 14 0 0 0 14 

Section 106 Interest  14 18 0 32 0 0 0 32 

Christmas Decorations  17 0 0 17 0 0 0 17 
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 Balance  Appropriations  Balance  Movements  Appropriations  Balance  

 @ 31.03.17 Transfers In  Transfers Out @ 31.03.18 
 Transfers 

In 

Transfers 

Out  

@31.03.19 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 

Electric Van Replacement  17 4 0 22 (16) 4 0 11 

Christmas Market  25 0 (25) 0 0 0 0 0 

Air Quality Initiatives  17 6 0 23 0 6 (18) 10 

Commons Parking  14 13 0 27 0 6 (8) 25 

Tank Memorial  10 0 0 10 0 0 0 10 

Income Volatility Reserve  0 178 0 178 0 0 (178) 0 

HRS Reserve 89 0 0 89 0 0 0 89 

City Hall Sinking Fund  0 36 0 36 0 24 0 60 

Total General Fund Earmarked 

Reserves 

5,553 2,135 (3,040) 4,648 56 3,803 (1,741) 6,767 

 

HRA 
 

       

HRA Strategic Growth  149 178 (150) 178 0 0 (153) 25 

HRA Invest to  Save 164 3 (26) 140 0 0 0 140 

Capital Fees Equalisation  241 0 (3) 238 0 0 (56) 182 

HRA Strategic Priority  240 0 0 240 0 0 0 240 

De Wint Court  73 0 0 73 0 0 0 73 

HRA Repairs Account  611 13 0 624 0 13 (58) 579 

HRA Survey Works 54 3 0 57 0 3 0 60 

Stock  Retention  22 0 0 22 0 0 0 22 

Total HRA Earmarked Reserves  1,554 197 (179) 1,572 0 16 (267) 1,321 

         

Total Earmarked Reserves  7,107 2,332 (3,219) 6,220 56 3,819 (2,008) 8,088 

         

Insurance Fund  3,558 468 (75) 3,950 0 139 (227) 3,862 

         

Total Earmarked Reserves  10,665 2,800 (3,294) 10,170 56 3,958 (2,235) 11,950 
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Insurance Reserve  
 

The insurance fund has been set up to ensure adequate funding for the insurance risk 

covered by the City of Lincoln Council. In 201 8/1 9 the risk in resp ect of Public Liability 

Insurance had an excess of £100,000 (per claim) with no cap ceiling. The movements on 

the fund are as follows:  

 

2017/18     2018/19  

£'000    £'000 

3,557  Opening Balance   3,950 

(82)  Funding of claims/losses   (227) 

475  Contribut ions from revenue   139 

3,950  Closing Balance   3,862 

 
 

Note 11 ð Other Operating Expenditure  

 
2017/18     2018/19  

£'000    £'000 

803  Levies  818 

529  
Payments to the Government Housing Capital 

Receipts Pool  
 760 

(985)  (Gains)/losses on the disposal  of non -current assets   (185) 

348  Total  1,393 

     

 

Note 1 2 - Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure  

 
2017/18     2018/19  

£'000    £'000 

3,195  Interest payable and similar charges   3,302 

2,245  Net interest on the net defined liability   2,337 

(2,332)  (Surplus)/Deficit on Trading Operations   (2,769) 

(108)  Interest Receivable and similar income   (171) 

3,000  Total  2,699 

 
 

Note 1 3 ð Taxation and Non -Specific Grant Income  

 
2017/1 8    2018/19  

£'000    £'000 

(6,176)  Council Tax incom e   (6,452) 

(5,158)  Retained Business Rates income and expenditure   (8,958) 

(2,644)  Non ring -fenced government grants   (1,031) 

(3,002)  Capital grants and contributions   (1,183) 

(16,980)   Total  (17,624) 
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Note 1 4 ð Non -Current Assets including Prope rty, Plant & Equipment , Investment Properties  and In tangible Assets  

 

The movement in the Councilõs Assets during the year was as follows: 

 
Movements in 2018/19  

 
Council 

Dwellings  

Land & 

Buildings  

Vehicles 

Plant & 

Equip  

Infra - 

Structure  

Assets 

Comm unity  

Assets 

Surplus 

Assets 

Assets 

Under  

Con - 

struction  

Property 

Plant & 

Equip 

Subtotal  

Intangible 

Assets 

Investment 

Properties  
TOTAL 

 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 

Cost or Valuation  

At 1 April 201 8 228,594 92,576 10,346 0 4,273 2,863 4,898 343,550 1,882 16,225 361,657 

Additions  13,608 718 433 0 680 1,935 9,413 26,786 50 11,220 38,056 

Revaluation increases/ 

(decreases) recognised in the 

Revaluation Reserve  

58 3,299 0 0 17 5,824 0 9,198 0 0 9,198 

Revaluation increases/ 

(dec reases) recognised in the 

Surplus/Deficit on the Provision 

of Services  

(2,764) (1,626) 0 0 (15) 0 0 (4,405) 0 1,620 (2,785) 

De-recognition and  disposals (1,704)  (519) 0 0 0 0 (2,223) 0 (322) (2,545) 

Other movements in cost or 

valuation  

11,618 (1,156) 420 0 0 1,200 (12,632) (550) 0 1735 1,185 

At 31 March 201 9 249,411 93,811 10,680 0 4,955 11,822 1,678 372,357 1,932 30,478 404,767 

            

   Depreciation             

At 1 April 2018  (9) (2,324) (8,174) 0 (119)  (2) 0 (10,627) (1,337) 0 (11,964) 

Depre ciation for year  (5,852) (1,531) (448) 0 0 (3) 0 (7,834) (234) 0 (8,068) 

Depreciation written out to 

the Revaluation Reserve  

5 1,116 0 0 0 0 0 1,121 0 0 1,121 
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Movements in 2018/19  

Depreciation written out to 

the Surplus/Deficit on the 

Provision of Services  

5,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,800 0 0 5,800 

Impairment losses/(reversals) 

recognised in the Revaluation 

Reserve 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

De-recognition ð disposals 43 0 519 0 0 0 0 562 0 0 562 

De-recognition ð other  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other movements in c ost or 

valuation  

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

At 31 March 201 9 (13) (2,739) (8,102) 0 (119)  (5) 0 (10,979) (1,571) 0 (12,550) 

 

Net book value of assets at 

31.03.19 
249,399 91,072 2,578 0 4,836 11,817 1,678 361,378 360 30,478 392,217 

Net book value of assets a t 

31.03.18  
228,585 90,252 2,173 0 4,154 2,861 4,898 332,923 545 16,225 349,693 

 

Owned  249,399 91,072 2,194 0 4,836 11,817 1,678 360,994 360 30,478 391,833 

Finance lease  0 0  384 0  0  0 0 384 0 0 384 
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Movements in 201 7/1 8 

 
Council 

Dwellings  

Land & 

Buildings  

Vehicles 

Plant & 

Equip  

Infra - 

Structure  

Assets 

Comm unity  

Assets 

Surplus 

Assets 

Assets 

Under  

Con - 

struction  

Property 

Plant & 

Equip 

Subtotal  

Intangible 

Assets 

Investment 

Properties  
TOTAL 

 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 

Cost or Valuation  

At 1 April 201 7 223,233 69,026 9,603 0 3,333 4,289 12,281 321,765 2,416 8,519 332,700 

Additions  7,528 1,745 40 0 974 46 16,969 27,301 151 6,965 34,418 

Revaluation increases/ 

(decreases) recognised in the 

Revaluation Reserve  

20 (80) 0 0 2 180 0 123 0 0 123 

Revaluation increases/ 

(decreases) recognised in the 

Surplus/Deficit on the Provision 

of Services  

19 (466) 0 0 (3) 0 0 (450) 0 (248) (698) 

De-recognition and  disposals (2,377)  (16) 0 0 (160) 0 (2,553)  (686) 0 (3,239)  

Othe r movements in cost or 

valuation  

173 22,319 720 0 0 (1,491) (24,352) (2,631) 0 988 (1,644) 

At 31 March 2018  228,597 92,544 10,346 0 4,306 2,864 4,898 343,555 1,882 16,225 361,662 

            

   Depreciation             

At 1 April 2017  (23)  (1,454)  (7,709) 0 (119)  (9)  0 (9,314)  (1,787)  0 (11,101)  

Depreciation for year  (10,367) (1,179) (445) 0 0 (4) 0 (11,995)  (212) 0 (12,207)  

Depreciation written out to 

the Revaluation Reserve  

6 301 0 0 0 8 0 315 0 0 315 

Movements in 201 7/1 8 

Depreciation written out t o 

the Surplus/Deficit on the 

Provision of Services  

10,258 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,258 0 0 10,258 



66  

S T A T E M E N T  O F  A C C O U N T S  

2 0 1 8 / 1 9  

Movements in 201 7/1 8 

 
Council 

Dwellings  

Land & 

Buildings  

Vehicles 

Plant & 

Equip  

Infra - 

Structure  

Assets 

Comm unity  

Assets 

Surplus 

Assets 

Assets 

Under  

Con - 

struction  

Property 

Plant & 

Equip 

Subtotal  

Intangible 

Assets 

Investment 

Properties  
TOTAL 

 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 Ãõ000 

Impairment losses/(reversals) 

recognised in the Revaluation 

Reserve 

0 0 0 0 0 7 0 7 0 0 7 

De-recognition ð disposals 116 0 0 0 0 0 0 116 0 0 116 

De-recognition ð oth er 0 0 16 0 0 0 0 16 686 0 702 

Other movements in cost or 

valuation  

0 28 0 0 0 (7) 0 21 0 0 21 

At 31 March 2018  (10) (2,304) (8,138)  0 (119)  (5)  0 (10,576) (1,313)  0 (11,889) 

 

Net book value of assets at 

31.03.18 
228,587 90,240 2,208 0 4,187 2,859 4,898 332,979 569 16,225 349,772 

Net book value of assets at 

31.03.18  
228,585 90,252 2,173 0 4,154 2,861 4,898 332,923 545 16,225 349,693 

Net book value of assets at 

31.03.17 
223,210 67,572 1,894 0 3,214 4,280 12,281 312,451 629 8,519 321,599 

 

Owned  228,587 90,240 1,633 0 4,187 2,859 4,898 332,404 569 16,225 349,198 

Finance lease  0 0  575 0  0  0 0 575 0 0 575 

 

 

During 2018/19 the Asset Register and the ledger were aligned with minor restatements as above resulting in movements in the capital adjustment account 

(see note 26) which have been treated as in year transactions.            
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Valuation  
 

The Council  carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and 

Equipment and Investment Properties required to be measured at fair value are  

revalued at least every five years.  

 

The valuations of the Councilõs freehold and leasehold properties have been carried 

out in accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation Practice and Guidance 

Notes of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. A ll valuations are either 

undertaken by the following Council Officers, or by the District Valuer.  

  

 Principal Property Surveyor   Mr P Clifton    MRICS 

 Senior Property Surveyor   Mr A Wiswould   MRICS 
 

The table below shows the assets valued in each accounti ng period:  

 

 

Council 

Dwellings  

Land & 

Buildings  

Community 

Assets 

Vehicles 

Plant & 

Equip.  

 

Surplus 

Assets 
Assets Under 

Construction  
 

 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 Ãõ000 £'000 

Valuation at 

historical cost    
4,836 2,578  1,678 

Valued at 

current value 

as at:  
    

 
 

31/03/2019  249,399 51,709 
  

10,784  

31/03/2018  
 

19,007 
  

907  

31/03/2017  
 

16,799 
  

0  

31/03/2016  
 

2,687 
  

126  

31/03/2015  
 

12,687 
  

0  

Total cost or 

valuation  
249,399 102,889 4,836 2,578 11,817 1,678 

 
Depreciation  
 

Tangible Assets  

Deprecia tion, as stated in the Accounting Policies, is calculated on a straight -line 

basis. Non -operational assets are treated as investment properties and as such are 

not depreciated. The standard useful lives of assets, used for depreciation purposes 

(unless ove rwritten by asset valuations), are as follows:  

 
Category Of Asset  Useful Economic Life  

  

Council Dwellings  60 years for new properties  

30 years for properties over 30 

years old  

Other Land & Buildings   

- Council Buildings  50 years 

- Car Parks 60 years  

- Cemeteries  50 years 

- Crematorium  21 years  

- Community Centres  50 years 
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Category Of Asset  Useful Economic Life  

- Offices  50 years 

- Depots & Workshops  50 years 

- Public Conveniences  50 years 

- Recreation Grounds  50 years 

- Sports Centres  50 years 

  

Vehicles, Plant & Equipment   

- Co mputers  5 years 

- Equipment  10 years 

- Fixtures and Fittings  5 years 

- Plant  7/10 years  

- Vehicles  5/7 years  

  

Infrastructure Assets  50 years 

 

Intangible Assets  

Intangible assets are amortised to service headings within cost of services as part of  

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement  on a straight -line basis, as 

stated in the Accounting Policies. The standard useful life, used for amortisation 

purposes is:  

 
Category Of Asset  Useful Economic Life  

Intangible Asset   

- Software  5 years 

 
 

Note 1 5 ð Heritage Assets  

 
Reconciliation of the Carrying Value of Heritage Assets Held by the Council  
 

 Heritage  Musical  Civic   Total 

 Vehicles  Instruments  Insignia  Other  Assets 

 £õ000 £õ000 £õ000 £õ000 £õ000 

Cost or Valuation       

At 1 April 2017  140 2,570 2,359 409 5,478 

Additions      0 

De-recognitions  (103) 0 0 0 (103) 

Revaluations  1 715 0 0 716 

At 31 March 2018  38 3,285 2,359 409 6,091 

      

Cost or Valuation       

At 1 Ap ril 2018 38 3,285 2,359 409 6,091 

Additions      0 

De-recognitions      0 

Revaluations      0 

At 31 March 2019  38 3,285 2,359 409 6,091 

      

Heritage Vehicles  

The Council's heritage vehicles are  reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance 

valuation which is based on market values. These insurance valuations are reviewe d 
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annually and revalued every five years by an appropriately qualified external 

valuer.   

 
 
Musical Instruments  
 

This category contains a donated asset, a violin by Antonio Stradivari of Cremona 

dated 1695, which is on loan to the Halle Orchestra. The violin was last valued at  the 

end of 201 7/1 8 by  external valuers , Ingles and Hayday , at £ 3.2m.   

 
Civic Insignia  
 

The collection of civic insignia includes the Mayor's and Sheriff's badges and chains 

of office and mace.  All items are on display at the Guildhall , Lincoln.  It also includes 

four ceremoni al and fighting swords of considerable  historical significance, which 

together are valued at £ 2.4m. The Council's collection of civic insignia is reported in 

the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based o n market values. These 

insurance valuations are reviewed annually and revalued every five years by an 

appropriately qualified external valuer.  These were revalued at 31 st March 201 7 by 

external valuers Bamfords . 

 
Other Heritage Assets 
 

This category includ es artwork and paintings and miscellaneous assets r ecognised in 

the Balance Sheet, such as the Books of Remembrance kept o n display at the City 

Crematorium. These are reported at insurance valuation w hich is based on market 

values and are subject to period ic revaluation by an appr opr iately external 

qualified valuer . These were revalued at 31 st Marc h 2017 by external valuers 

Bamfords . 

 
Heritage Assets not recognised in the Balance Sheet  
 

In addition to the assets recognised in the Balance Sheet and disclosed  in the 

above table, the Council holds a number of assets which are by their nature 

heritage assets but are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. The Council does not 

consider that reliable cost or valuation information can be obtained for these assets 

due to the nature of the assets and the lack of market values. Examples of this type 

of asset are ancient structures and ruins, War memorials and public art.  These are 

listed below.   

 
Scheduled Ancient Monuments   

St Paul in the Bail  Walls & Well 

Saltergate Roman W all and Posterngate  Wall & Gate  

Mint Wall, W est Bight  Wall  

Pottergate  Arch  

Lower West Gate & Wall, City Hall  Gate & Wall  

St Marys Conduit  Conduit  

Temple Gardens, Close Wall  Wall  

Roman Wall, Mary Sookias House, Cecil Street  Wall  

  

Memorials   

High Street  War memorial  

Memorials   

Dixon Street  War memorial  

Birchwood Avenue  War memorial  
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Newark Road/Maple Street  War memorial  

  

Public Art   

The Chimes, Brayford Wharf North  Artwork  

Empowerment, Waterside  Artwork  

Exotic Cone I and II  Artwork  

Lilies, Altham Terrace  Artwork  

Lion, Arboretum  Artwork  

Love Seat, The Lawn  Artwork  

Dr Charlesworth Statue, The Lawn  Artwork  

Mother and Child, The Lawn  Artwork  

St Marks Obelisk  Artwork  

Light Sculpture, Wigford Bridge  Artwork  

 
 

Note 1 6 ð Investment Pr operties  and Surplus Assets  

 

Movements in the value of Investment Properties are shown in note 1 4. The current 

value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and best use from a 

market participantõs perspective.   

 

The following items of incom e and expenditure have been accounted for in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

There are no restrictions on the Councilõs ability to realise the value inherent in its 

investment property or on the Councilõs right to the remittance of income and the 

proceeds of disposal. The Council has no contractual obligations to purchase, 

construct or develop investment property or repairs, maintenance or enhancement.  

 

The movements in the value of investment properties are analysed below:  
 

2017/18     2018/19  

£'000    £'000 

8,519  Balance at 1 April   16,225 

6,965  Additions   11,220 

0  Disposals  (322) 

(248)  Net gain/loss from Fair Value Adjustment   1,620 

988  Transfers (to)/from Other Land and Buildings   1,735 

16,224  Balance at 31 March   30,478 

 
Fair Value Hierarchy  

The Councilõs Investment Properties have been assessed as being Level 2 on the Fair 

Value Hierarchy (See Note 1 Accounting Policies, point 2 0 for a n explanation of fair 

value levels).  

 

2017/1 8    2018/19  

£'000    £'000 

1,012  Rental income from investment property   1,196 

(180)  
Direct operating expenses arising from investment 

property  
 (198) 

(248)  Fair value gains/(losses) on investment properties   1620 

0  Gains/(losses) on disposal of investment properties   374 

584  Net gain/(loss)   2,993 
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Valuation Techniques Used to Determine Level 2 Fair Values for Investment Properties  

An income -investment approach has been used  to determine the fair value of 

Investment Properties . This technique involves an assessme nt of potential future net 

incomes flowing from the property. In the case of the majority of properties that are 

currently let, this reflects terms of the existing lease including passing rents and any 

scheduled rent reviews and, if later, ultimate reversi on to full market rental value. In 

the case of properties that are currently vacant, it is assumed that a letting is 

immediately sought at full market rental value and otherwise on optimum letting 

terms from the perspective of a market participant. Potenti al future net income 

flows are then capitalised using market all -risks term and reversionary yields to derive 

a present value, thus representing Market Value.  

 

There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for 

Investment Propert ies. 

 
Highest and Best Use of Investment Properties  

In estimating the fair value of the Councilõs investment properties, the highest and 

best use of the properties is deemed to be their current use.  

 
Valuers  

The Investment Properties that were valued at 3 1 March 201 9 were valued in 

accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the 

professional standards of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.  

 
Surplus Assets 
 

Movements in the value of Surplus Assets are shown in note 14.  

 

The current value measurement base for surplus assets is fair value, estimated at 

highest and best use from a market participantõs perspective.  There have been no 

transfers between the levels of the hierarchy during the year.   A transfer would 

occur when m ore detail ed  market information becomes available.  

 

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the 

following three levels:  

¶ Level 1 inputs ð quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 

assets that the Authori ty can access at the measurement date.  

¶ Level 2 inputs ð inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 

that are observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.  

¶ Level 3 inputs ð unobservable inputs for the asset.  

 

The Councilõs surplus assets are all valued using level three inputs due to their latent 

value or specialist nature.  

 

 

Note 1 7 ð Intangible Assets  

 

Movements in  the value of  Intangible Assets are shown in note 14.  No internally 

generated intangible assets are recognised in th e Balance Sheet.   The carrying 

amo unt of intangible assets is amort ised on a straight -line basis.  A mortisation of 

£234k was  charged to service headings in the Cost of Services.  
 
 

Note 1 8 ð Financial Instruments  
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The Council has reclassified the followin g investments at 1 April 2018:  

 

Investors in Lincoln ð on 1 April 2018 the C ouncil held shares at cost of £14,000 which 

have been designated as fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.  The 

fair value of the shares, derived using IFRS13 Fair Value Me asurement at 1 April 2018 

was £271k. No dividends are received for these instruments.  

 

Dunham Bridge ð On 1 April 201 8 the C ouncil held shares at a fair value, based on 

market evidence, of £458k with the accumulated gains being held in the Available 

for Sale Reserve.   The fair value of the shares, at 1 April 2018 remained unchanged. 

Dividends are received for these instruments.  Upon reclassification to fair value 

through Other Comprehensive Income the accumulated gains were transferred 

from the Available for Sale Reserve to the Financial Instruments Revaluation 

Reserve (see note 26).  

 

All investments classified as loans and receivables have been classified as 

Amortised Cost as they are all simple principal and interest investments with no 

impairment allowa nce or other cash flows associated with them.  The investments 

are ca rried at the same value on the Balance S heet and any transactional costs 

are charged directly to the Income and Expenditure Account as they are incurred.  

 

 

Previous 

Classification  

Balance  

c /f  

Adj for 

IFRS9 

Balance 

b/f  

 IFRS9 Classification 

 31/3/18   1/4/18   Amortised 

Cost  

FVOCI* Total 

IFRS9 

   £000s  £000s £000s £000s 

Financial Liabilities at 
amortised cost  

       

Long Term Borrowing  77,354  77,354  77,354  77,354 

Short Term Borrowing  5,135  5,135  5,135  5,135 

Long Term Creditors  (342)  (342)  (342)  (342) 

Short Term Creditors  (8,567)  (8,567)  (8,567)  (8,567) 

Total Financial 
Liabilities  

73,580 
 

73,580 
 

73,580 
 

73,580 

Financial Assets at 
amortised cost  

       

Short Term 

Investme nts 
15,615 

 
15,615 

 
15,615 

 
15,615 

Long Term Debtors  133  133  133  133 

Short Term Debtors  7,304  7,304  7,304  7,304 

Cash and Cash 

Equivalents  
875 

 
875 

 
875 

 
875 

Available for Sale 

Financial Assets  

472 (472)      

Long Term 

Investments  

 
472 472 

 
 472 472 

Total Financial Assets  24,399 0 24,399  23,927 472 24,399 
*Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income  
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Investments in Equity Instruments Designated at Fair Value through Other 

Comprehensive Income  

Fair Value of Equity Instruments designated at fa ir value through other 

comprehensive income include the following:  

 

 31/03/2018  31/03/2019  

 £000 £000 

Non -listed securities  458 504 

Total 458 504 

 

Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements for Financial Assets Carried at Fair Value 

Categorised within L evel 3 of the Fair Value Hierarchy for Financial Assets  

31 March 2019  

 Unquoted 
Shares 

Other  Total 

 £000 £000 £000 

Opening Balance  271 0 271 

Transfers into level 3  0 0 0 

Transfers out of Level 3  0 0 0 

Total gains or losses for the period     

- Included in Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services  

0 0 0 

- Included in Other Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure  

23 0 23 

Additions  0 0 0 

Disposals 0 0 0 

Closing Balance  294 0 294 

 

Movements in the value of assets carried at fair value categorised withi n level 3 of 

the hierarchy in 2017/18 are not shown as these were previously categorised as 

available for sale financial assets.  

 

The borrowings and investments disclosed in the Balance Sheet are made up of the 

following reclassified categories of financia l instruments:  
 

Summary of Financial Instruments   1/4/18  31/3/19  

  £000s £000s 

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost     

Long Term Borrowing  Level 1  77,354 95,354 

Short Term Borrowing  Level 1  5,135 21,475 

Long Term Creditors  Level 1  (342) (105) 

Short Term Creditors  Level 1  (8,567) (6,636) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  Level1  0 (613) 

Total Financial Liabilities   73,580 109,475 

Financial Assets at amortised cost       

Short Term Investments  Level 1  15,615 29,216 

Long Term Debtors  Level 1  133 1,035 

Short Term Debtors  Level 1  7,304 9,770 
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Cash and Cash Equivalents  Level 1  875 0 

Total Financial Assets   23,927 40,021 

Financial Assets at FVOCI*       

Long Term Investments  Level 2/3**  472 798 

Total Assets at FVOCI   472 798 
*Fair Value through Other Compr ehensive Income  

** See table below for detail  

 

There have been no transfer between levels in the hierarchy during 2018/19.  

 

Under accounting requirements the carrying value of the financial instrument value 

is shown in the balance sheet which includes the principal amount borrowed or lent 

and further adjustments for breakage costs or stepped interest loans (measured by 

an effective interest rate calculation) including accrued interest. Accrued interest is 

shown separately in short term debtors/creditors  whe re the payments/receipts are 

due within one year. The effective interest rate is effectively accrued interest 

receivable under the instrument, adjusted for the amortisation of any premiums or 

discounts reflected in the purchase price.    

 
Financial Instrume nt Gains/Losses  
 

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement in relation to financial instruments are made up as follows:  

2018/19  Financial 

Liabilities 

Financial 

Assets 

Total 

 Amortised Cost  FVOCI  

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Interest Expense  3,302   3,302 

Interest Income   (147) (24) (171) 

Surplus or deficit arising on 

revaluation of financial 

assets 

  (326) (326) 

Net (gain)/loss for the year  3,302 (147) (350)  2,805 

 

2017/18      

Interest Expense  3,195   3,195 

Inte rest Income   (110) (22) (132) 

Surplus or deficit arising on 

revaluation of financial 

assets 

 (58)  (58) 

Net (gain)/loss for the year  3,195 (168)  (22) 3,005 

 

Fair Value of Financial Assets  

Some of the A uthorityõs financial assets are measured at fair value on a recurring 

basis and are described in the following table, including the valuation techniques 

used to measure them.  
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Financial assets measured at fair value        

Recurring fair value 

measurements  

Input level 

in fair 

value 

hierarchy **  

Valuation t echnique used to 

measure fair value  

As at 

31/3/19  

As at 

31/3/18  

(using same 

techniques)  

£'000 £'000 

Fair Value OCI  /Available for Sale  

Equity shareholding in 

Dunham  Bridge Company  Level 2  

Average price obtained 

during the last three share 

sales 504 458 

Equity shareholding in 

Investors in Lincoln  Level 3  Discounted cash flow *  294 271 

Total     798 729 

* The Authority's shareholding in Investors in Lincoln - the shares in this company are not 

traded in an active market and fair value of £293,881 has  been based on valuation 

techniques that are not based on observable current market transactions or available 

market data. The valuation has been made based on an analysis of the assets and liabilities 

in the company's latest audited accounts and assuming future profit will remain the same as 

current year profit.  

**See Glossary for a definition of Fair Value Input Levels  

 

Fair Value s of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not measured at Fair 
Value (but for which Fair Value Disclosures are R equired)  

Except for the financial assets carries at fair value (described in the table above), all 

other financial liabilities and financial assets held by the authority are carried in the 

Balance Sheet at amortised cost:  

 

¶ For loans from the Public Works L oan Board (PWLB) and other loans payable, 

premature repayment rates from the PWLB have been applied to provide the 

fair value under PWLB debt redemption procedures;  

¶ For loans receivable prevailing benchmark market rates have been used to 

provide the fair v alue;  

¶ No early repayment or impairment is recognised;  

¶ Where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months, or is a trade or 

other receivable, the fair value is taken to be the carrying amount 

outstanding or the billed amount;  

¶ The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or 

billed amount.  

 

The fair values calculated are as follows:  
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Financial Liabilities  
 

31/03/1 8  31/03/19  

Carrying 

Amount  

 Fair 

Value  
 Carrying 

Amount  

 Fair Value  

Ãõ000  Ãõ000  Ãõ000  Ãõ000 

59,956  71,653 PWLB Debt 72,959  85,814 

16,175  26,345 Money Market Debt  16,175  26,771 

565  561 Stock  565  565 

5,762  5,900 Other  27,130  27,126 

342  342 Lease Liabilities  105  105 

82,800  104,801 Total Debt  116,934  140,381 

                                                                                          
The Council has £561,000 of listed debt.  This stock has not been traded in recent 

years.  Due to this debt being immaterial and the lack of market activity its fair value 

has been assessed to be its ôparõ (or face) value inclusive of accrued interest at the 

year end . 

 

The fair value is greater than the carrying amount because the Councilõs portfolio of 

loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is higher 

than the rates av ailable for similar loans in the market at the Balance Sheet date. 

This is to be expected given that the current rates of interest are at a historically low 

level.  

 
Financial Assets  

31/03/1 8  31/03/19  

Carrying 

Amount  

 Fair 

Value  
 Carrying 

Amount  

 Fair 

Val ue  

Ãõ000  Ãõ000  Ãõ000  Ãõ000 

15,600  15,615 Money Market Investments  <1 year  29,216  29,216 

0  0 Money Market Investments  >1 year  0  0 

133  133 Long Term Debtors  1,035  1,035 

15,733  15,748 Total Investments  30,251  30,251 

 

The differences are att ributable to fixed interest instruments payable being held by 

the Council, whose interest rate is higher than the prevailing rate estimated to be 

available at 31 March. This increases the fair value of financial assets and raises the 

value of loans and investments held at amortised cost.  

 

The fair value of Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans of £85.814m  measures the 

economic effect of the terms agreed with the PWLB compared with estimates of the 

terms that would be offered for market transactions undertake n at the Balance 

Sheet date. The difference between the carrying amount and the fair value 

measures the additional interest that the Authority will pay over the remaining terms 
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of the loans under the agreements with the PWLB, against what would be paid if the 

loans were at prevailing market rates.  

 

However, the Council has a continuing ability to borrow at concessionary rates from 

the PWLB rather than from the markets, termed the PWLB Certainty Interest rates. A 

supplementary measure of the fair value as a  result of its PWLB commitments for 

fixed rate loans is to compare the terms of these loans with the new borrowing rates 

available from the PWLB. If a value is calculated on this basis, the carrying amount 

of £72.959m would be valued at £85.814m. But, if t he Council were to seek to avoid 

the projected loss by repaying the loans to the PWLB, the PWLB would raise a 

penalty charge for early redemption in addition to charging a premium for the 

additional interest that will not now be paid. The exit price for th e PWLB loans 

including the penalty charge would be £98.670m.  

 

Trade debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair approximation of their 

value.  
 

Note 1 9 ð Inventories  

 

In undertaking its work the Council holds reserves of inventories togethe r with 

amounts of uncompleted work (work in progress). The figure shown in the Balance 

Sheet may be subdivided as follows:  

 

 

Consumable 

Stores 

City Maintenance 

Services Materials  

City Maintenance 

Services Work in 

Progress 

Total 

 2017/1 8 2018/1 9 2017/1 8 2018/1 9 2017/1 8 2018/1 9 2017/1 8 2018/1 9 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

         

Balance outstanding 

at the start of the year  
91 73 59 5 173 142 324 220 

Purchases  14 24 0 0 0 0 14 24 

Recognised as an 

expense in the year  

(33) (11) (54) (3) (30) (142) (118) (156) 

Balance outstanding 

at the year -end  
72 85 5 2 142 0 220 88 

 
 

Note 20 ð Debtors  

 

Debtors listed under current assets are monies due which the Council expects to 

collect within one year of the Balance Sheet date and are analysed as follows:  

 
31/03/18   31/03/1 9 

Ãõ000  Ãõ000 

1,518 Central Government Bodies  1,473 

1,789 Other Local Authorities  2,044 

1 NHS Bodies 1 

10,696 Other Entities and Individuals  10,328 

14,004 Total Short Term Debtors  13,846 

(3,762)  Less Impairment Loss Al lowance  (4,068)  

10,242 Net Short Term Debtors as per Balance Sheet  9,778 
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Debtors for Local Taxation  

 

The past due but not impaired amount for local taxation (council tax and non -

domestic rates) can be analysed by age as follows:  

 
31/03/18   31/03/19  

Ãõ000  Ãõ000 

124 Less than three months  127 

223 Three to six months  268 

487 Six months to one year  606 

4,909 More than one year  5,268 

5,743 Total 6,269 

    

Note 21 ð Cash and Cash Equivalents  

 

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:  
 

31/03/1 8  31/03/1 9 

Ãõ000 

 
 Ãõ000 

 

1 Cash held by the Council             1 

875 Bank Current accounts  (613) 

876  (612)  

 

The overdrawn balance at 31/3/2019 shows the financial position which includes 

creditor payment s awaitin g clearance through the bank account.  
 

Note 2 2 ð Assets Held for Sale  

 

The Authority ha d  2 pieces of development land as  assets held for sale at the 

beginning of the year . One  was sold during the year. The sale of the remaining asset  

ha s been approved but  was not completed as at 31 st March 201 9. The asset is 

included as Current Assets as at 31 st March 201 9. 

 

 

Current  
 

Current  

2017/18  

 

2018/19  

£000 

 

£000 

2,525 Balance at start of the year  4,575 

769 Additions  0 

 
Newly classified:   

1,543  - Property Pla nt & Equipment  15 

1,531 Revaluation gain/(loss)  0 

0 Transfers from AHFS (1,200) 

(1,794) Disposals (1,890) 

4,575 Closing Balance  1,500 
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Note 2 3 ð Creditors  

 

Creditors shown as current liabilities are amounts payable by the Council within one 

year o f the Balance Sheet date and are analysed as follows:  

 

 
31/03/18   31/03/19  

Ãõ000 

 
 Ãõ000 

 

(6,134) Central Government Bodies  (1,137) 

(246) Other Local Authorities  (3,422) 

(8,985) Other Entities and Individuals  (8,428) 

(15,365)  Total (12,987) 
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Note 24 ð Provisions 

 

These amounts are set aside to provide for potential liabilities relating to specific occurrences and comprise the following balances:  

 

 

Licensing 

Legal  Case  

 

 

 

Ãõ000 

Business Rates 

RV Reduct ion 

the Think Tank  

 

 

Ãõ000 

Compulsory  

Purchas e 

Order  

 

 

Ãõ000 

Local  

Author i ty  

Mortgage 

Scheme  

 

Ãõ000 

Business 

Rates 

Appeals  

 

 

Ãõ000 

Balance at 1 April 2018  (10)  (37)  (87)  (14)  (3,057) 

Restatement of opening balances      (1,528) 

Revised balance at 1 April 2018  (10) (37) (87) (14) (4,585) 

Additional  Provisions made in 

2018/1 9 
0 0 (4) 0 (766) 

Amounts used in 2018/19  10 0 0 0 126 

Unused Amounts Reversed in 2018/19  0 0 0 0 1,939 

Unwinding of Discounting in 2018/19  0 0 0 0 0 

Balance at 31 March 2019  0 (37)  (91)  (14)  (3,286)  

 

The provision for busine ss rate appeals represents the Council's share (40% of £ 7.641m) of  the total provision for appeals against the rateable 

valuation set by the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) not settled as at 31 March 201 9.  The total  provision is accounted for in the Collect ion 

Fund.  The amount and timing of outflows against the Business Rates Appeals provision is dependent on the processing and dete rmination of  

business rates appeals by the Valuation Office.   

 

There is a restatement of the opening balance on the business ra te appeals of £ 1.528m to reflect pilot status.  
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Note 2 5 ð Usable Reserves  

 

Movements in the Council õs usable reserves are detailed in the Move ment in 

Reserves Statement and Note  10. 

 

 

Note 2 6 ð Unusable Reserves  

 

The Council keeps a number of unusable  reserves in the Balance Sheet.  Some are 

required to be held for statutory reasons;  some are needed to comply with proper 

accounting practice.  

 
Reserve Balance 

31/03/18  

Restated  

balance  

 31/03/18  

Net 

Movement 

in Year  

Balance 

31/03/19  

Purpose of Reserve  Further Details of 

Movements  

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000   

Revaluation 

Reserve 
22,146 20,604 8,649 30,795 Store of gains on 

revaluation of 

assets  

a) below  

Pensions 

Reserve 

(85,858)  (14,832) (100,690) Balancing account 

to allow inclusion of 

Pensions Liability in 

the Balance Sheet  

Note 44 to the  

financial 

statements  

Capital 

Adjustment 

Account  

228,811 230,354 18,354 248,888 Store of capital 

resources set aside 

to meet past 

expenditure  

b) below  

Deferred 

Capital 

Receipts  

57  0 57 Expected future 

repayments fr om 

sales of assets 

received in 

instalments  

c) below  

Financial 

Instruments 

Adjustment 

Account  

(58)  3 (55) Balancing 

mechanism 

between the rates 

at which gains and 

losses are 

recognised under 

the Code of 

Practice  

d) below  

Available for 

Sale 

Financial 

Assets 

458  (458) 0 No longer required  e) below  

Financial 

Instruments 

Revaluation 

Reserve  

0  784 784 Store of gains on 

revaluation of 

investments not yet 

realised through 

sales 

e) below  
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Reserve Balance 

31/03/18  

Restated  

balance  

 31/03/18  

Net 

Movement 

in Year  

Balance 

31/03/19  

Purpose of Reserve  Further Details of 

Movements  

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000   

Collection 

Fund 

Adjustment 

Account ð 

Council Tax  

45  27 72 Store of C ouncilõs 

share of 

accumulated 

surpluses and 

deficits in relation to 

Council Tax on the 

Collection Fund  

f) below  

Collection 

Fund 

Adjustment 

Account - 

NNDR 

297  719 1,016 Store of Councilõs 

share of 

accumulated 

surpluses and 

deficits in relation to 

NNDR on the 

Collection Fund  

f) below  

Accumulate

d Absences 

Account  

(435)  10 (425) Absorbs the 

differences that 

would otherwise 

arise on the 

General Fund 

balance from 

accruing for 

compensated 

absences earned 

but not taken in the 

year (i.e. annual 

leave entitlement  

carried forward at 

31 March  

g) below  

 165,463  14,979 180,442   

 
a)  Revaluation Reserve  

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council  arising from 

increases in the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The 

balan ce is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:  

 

¶ revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost  

¶ used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through 

depreciation, or  

¶ disposed of and the gains are realised.  

 

The Reserve contains  only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the 

date that the Reserve was created.  
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RESTATED 

2017/1 8 

Ãõ000 
 

2018/19  

Ãõ000 

   

(22,721) Balance 1 April  (20,604) 

(1,603) Upward Revaluation of assets  (10,335) 

545 Downward revaluation of assets  and impairment 

losses not charged to the Surplus/Deficit on Provision 

of Services  

 

14 

(1,058) Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non -current assets 

not posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services 

 

(10,321) 

410 Difference between fair  value depreciation and 

historical cost depreciation  

 

130 

1,117 Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped  0 

107 Amounts written out to the Capital Adjustment 

Account  

0 

1,541 Amounts written out to the Capital Adjustment 

Account  Prior period adjustmen t 

 

(20,604) Balance 31 March  (30,795) 

 

 
b) Capital Adjustment Account  

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the 

different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non -current assets 

and for financing the ac quisition, construction or enhancement of those assets 

under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, 

construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations 

are charged to the Comprehensive Income  and Expenditure Statement (with 

reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a 

historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the 

Council  as finance for the costs of acquisition, constru ction and enhancement.  

 

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties , gains 

and losses on Assets held for Sale  and gains recognised on donated assets that 

have yet to be consumed by the Council . 

 

The Account also contains reva luation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and 

Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created 

to hold such gains.  

 

Note 9 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, 

apart from those inv olving the Revaluation Reserve.  
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RESTATED 

2017/18  

Ãõ000 

 

 

2018/19  

Ãõ000 

   

(219,271) Balance 1 April  (230,354) 

 Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure 

debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement:  

 

12,207 Char ges for depreciation and amortisation of non -

current assets  
8,064 

0 Other movements of depreciation  76 

(11,260) 
Revaluation (gains)/losses and impairments on  

Property, Plant and Equipment  
(1,394) 

248 Fair value movements on Investment Properties  (1,620) 

4,612 
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under 

statute  
897 

7 Assets under construction written off to revenue  0 

3,098 

Amounts of non -current assets written off on 

disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal 

to the Comprehensive Income a nd Expenditure 

Statement  

3,872 

68 Other adjustments  5 

8,980  9,900 

(518) Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation 

Reserve 

(131) 

(1,541) Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation 

Reserve prior period adjustment  

 

6,921 Net written out amo unt of the cost of non -current 

assets consumed in the year  

9,769 

 
Capital Financing applied in year:  

 

(4,674) Use of Capital Receipts to finance new capital 

expenditure  
(8,192) 

(150) 
Use of Capital Receipts to reduce capital financing 

requirement  
(150) 

(9,184) 
Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new 

capital expenditure  
(13,160) 

(492) 
Capital expenditure charged against the General 

Fund and HRA balances  
(4,956) 

(3,016) 
Application of Capital Grants to finance new 

capital expenditure  
(1,004) 

(484) 

Statutory Provision for the financing of capital 

investment charged against the General Fund and 

HRA balances (MRP/VRP)  

(842) 

(18,000)   (28,303) 

(230,354) Balance 31 March  (248,888) 

 

c)         Deferred Capital Receipts  

This account contains the exp ected future repayments of capital from sales of 

assets which will be received in instalments over an agreed period of time. They 

arise principally from mortgages on sold council houses. When made, these 
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payments are regarded as being of a capital nature a nd transactions during the 

year were as follows:   

 
2017/18  

Ãõ000 

 

 2018/19  

Ãõ000 

(57)  Balance 1 April  (57)  

0 Councilõs share of (surplus)/deficit for the year 0 

(57)  Balance 31 March  (57)  

 

d) Financial Instruments Adjustment Account  

The Financial Ins truments Adjustment Account provides a balancing mechanism 

between the rates at which gains and losses (such as premiums on the early 

repayment of debt) are recognised under the Code of Practice  and are required by 

statute to be met from the General Fund a nd HRA balances.  

 
2017/1 8 

Ãõ000 
 

2018/19  

Ãõ000 

60 Balance 1 April  58 

0 

Proportion of discounts incurred in previous financial 

years to be credited to the General Fund Balance in 

accordance with statutory requirements  

 

0 

(2) 

Proportion of premiums incur red in previous financial 

years to be charged against the General Fund Balance 

in accordance with statutory requirements  

 

(3) 

58 Balance 31 March  55 

 
e) Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve  and Available for Sale  Financial 
Instruments  Reserve 
 

The Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve c ontain ed  the gains and losses 

arising from movements in fair value of assets which were previously categorised as 

Available -for-Sale investments . During the year this account was closed and 

movements in the  fair value of financial instruments was taken to the Financial 

Instruments Revaluation Reserve.  

 
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve  

 

 
2017/1 8 

Ãõ000 
 

2018/19  

Ãõ000 

(400)  Balance 1 April  (458) 

(58) (Gain)/Loss on revaluations in year  0 

0 Transfer to Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve  458 

(458)  Balance 31 March  0 

 

The Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the 

authority arising from increases on the value of its investments measured at Fair 

Value thro ugh Other Comprehensive Income.  The balance is reduced when 
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investments with accumulated gains are either revalued downwards or impaired 

and the gains lost or disposed of and the gains are realised.  

 
Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve  2018/19  

Ãõ000 

Balance 1 April  0 

Transfer from Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve (458) 

(Gain)/Loss on FVOCI  revaluations in year  (69) 

Revaluations relating to previous years adjusted for in 18/19  (257) 

Balance 31 March  (784)  

 
f) Collection Fund Adjustment Account  ð Council Tax   

The Council Tax  Adjustment Account was introduced on 1 April 2009 to comply with 

the new accounting requirements for the Collection Fund contained within the 

Statement of Recommended Practice 2009/10 (SORP 2009). The diffe rence between 

accrued income for the year as shown in the Income and Expenditure Account and 

the amount required to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection 

Fund Adjustment Account. The balance on the account represents the Councilõs 

share of the accumulated surpluses and deficits on the Collection  Fund at the 

Balance Sheet date.  

 
2017/18  

Ãõ000 
 2018/19  

Ãõ000 

(52)  Balance 1 April  (45) 

7 

Amount by which council tax income credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is 

different from council tax income calculated for the year 

in accordance with statutory requirements  

(27) 

(45)  Balance 31 March  (72) 

 
f) Collection Fund Adjustment Account ð NNDR  

The NNDR Adjustment Account was introduced on 1 April 2013 to comply with the 

new regime for the collection of Business Rates and the resulting accounting 

requirements . The difference between accrued income for the year as shown in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required to be 

credited to the G eneral Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account. 

The balance on the account represents the Councilõs share of the accumulated 

surpluses and deficits on the Collection Fund at the Balance Sheet date.  

 
2017/18  

Ãõ000 
 2018/19  

Ãõ000 

1,309 Balan ce 1 April  (297)  

(1,606) 

Amount by which council non -domestic rates credited to 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is 

different from non -domestic rates income calculated for 

the year in accordance with statutory requirements  

(719) 

(297) Balance 31 March  (1,016) 

 
g) Accumulated Absences Account  

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs differences that would otherwise arise 

on the General Fund and HRA Balance from accruing for compensated absences 
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earned but not taken in year, e.g. annual  leave entitlement carried forward at 31 

March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on General Fund and HRA 

Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from this account.  
 

 2017/18  

Ãõ000  
  2018/19  

Ãõ000  

 425 Balance 1 April   435 

(425)  
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made 

at the end of the preceding year  
(435)  

436  
Amounts accrued at the end of the current 

year  
425  

 

11 

Amount by which officer remuneration 

charged in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement on an accruals ba sis 

is different from remuneration chargeable in 

the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements  

 

(10) 

 435 Balance 31 March   425 

 
 

Note 2 7 ð Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities  

 
The cash flows for operating activities include the following it ems: 

 

2017/1 8    2018/19  

£'000    £'000 

156  Interest received   147 

(3,118)  Interest paid   (3,121) 

 

 

Note 2 8 ð Cash Flow Statement ð Adjustment to surplus or deficit on provision of 
services for non -cash movements  

 
2017/1 8 

 

2018/19  

£'000 

 

£'000 

 

  12,112 Depreciation  7,906 

(9,895) Impairment and downward valuations  (3,016) 

96 Amortisation  234 

0 Increase/(decrease) in impairment for bad debts  0 

294 Increase/(decrease) in creditors  (309) 

1,499 (Increase)/decrease in debtors  182 

104 (Increase)/ decrease in inventories  132 

4,019 Movement in pension liability  4,786 

3,098 
Carrying amount of non -current assets and non -current 

assets held for sale, sold or derecognised  
3,872 

(326) 
Other non -cash items charged to the net surplus or deficit 

on the pr ovision of services  
223 

 

 

 

11,001 

 

14,010 
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Note 2 9 ð Cash Flow Statement ð Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of 
services for items that are investing & financing activities  

 
2017/1 8    2018/19  

£'000    £'000 

     

(4,671)  
Proceeds from sale of PPE, investment property and 

intangible assets  
 (4,430) 

(3,002)  
Any other items for which the cash effects are investing 

or financing cash flows  
 (1,183) 

     

(7,673)     (5,613) 

 

Note 30 ð Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities  

 
2017/1 8   2018/19  

£'000   £'000 

 
  

(34,866) 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets  
(37,673) 

(15,600) Purchase of short -term and long -term investments  (29,200) 

0 Other payments for investing activities  (902) 

4,671 
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 

investment property and intangible assets  
4,430 

20,760 Proceeds from short -term and long -term investments  15,600 

9,375 Other receipts from investing activities  2,021 

 
 

 

(15,660)  Net cash flo ws from investing activities  (45,724) 

 
 

Note 31 ð Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities  

 
2017/1 8 

 

2018/1 9 

£'000 

 

£'000 

 

  
(506) 

Cash payments for the reduction of outstanding liabilities 

relating to finance leases  
(234) 

5,750 Cash receipts of s hort & long -term borrowing  38,000 

0 Other receipts from financing activities  5 

0 Repayments of short - and long -term borrowing  (3,750) 

1,509 Other payments for financing activities  (2,921) 

 

 

 

6,753 Net cash flows from financing activities  31,100 
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Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities  

 

2018/19  
01/04/2018  

Financing Cash Flows  Non Cash  31/03/2019  

  New loans  Repayments   movements  
 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Long Term 

Borrowing  
77,354 20,000   -2000 95,354 

Short Term 

Borrowing  
5,135 18,000 -3,750 2091 21,476 

Lease liabilities  558   -234   324 

Total Liabilities 

from financing 

activities  

83,047 38,000 -3,984 91 117,154 

 

Note 3 2 ð Trading Operations  

 

The Council operates a  Housing Repairs  Service ( HRS), which carries  out day to day 

maintenance on c ouncil housing and other public buildings as well as 

environmental works, street furniture etc. The Council also owns and manages a fruit, 

vegetable and retail market situated within the City Centre and also operates and 

man ages a bus station and several car parks located throughout the city. It also 

manages a number of industrial estates and commercial properties.  

 
2017/18   2018/1 9 

Exp.  Inc.   Net   Exp.  Inc.   Net  

£'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000 

171  (251)  (79) Markets  170  (234)  (64) 

1,581  (3,852)  (2,271) Car Parks 1,937  (5,054)  (3,117) 

1,752  (4,103)   (2,350)  
(Surplus)/Deficit  

applicable to a service  
2,107  (5,289)  (3,182) 

7,218  (6,969)  249 HRS 7,527  (7,412)  116 

110  (112)  (2) City Bus Station  271  (164)  107 

96  (402)  (307) Industrial Estates  53  (1,535)  (1,482) 

85  (2,356)  (2,271) Lincoln Properties  145  (1,655)  (1,511) 

7,509  (9,839)  (2,331) 
(Surplus)/Deficit not 

applicable to a service  
7,997  (10,766)  (2,769) 

           

9,261  (13,492)  (4,861) Total (Surplus)/Deficit  10,104  (16,055)  (5,951) 

           
 

 

Note 3 3 ð Agency Services  

 

In accordance with the Code , the collection and distribution of National Non -

Domestic Rates (NNDR) and Council Tax  is deemed to be an agency arrange ment. 

The cost s of collection of NNDR and the surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund for 

the year, are shown in the Collection Fund Statement . 
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Note 3 4 ð Membersõ Allowances 

 

The Local Authorities (Membersõ Allowances) (Amendment) Regulations 1995 

requires local authorities to publish the amounts paid to members under the 

membersõ allowance scheme. 
 

The payments made to the City of Lincoln Council members during 2 018/1 9 totalled 

£237,618 (£227,047 in 2017/ 18).  
 

Payments are defined as:  

i.  Basic Allowan ce  

ii.  Special Responsibility Allowance  

iii.  Other allowances  

 

Note 3 5 ð Officersõ Remuneration 

 

The Accounts and  Audit Regulations 201 2 require  the Council to disclose 

remuneration paid to senior employees.   

 

For the purposes of the regulation senior employees a re persons whose salary is in 

excess of £150,000 per year or  whose salary is £50,000 or more and are  deemed to  

have responsibility for the management of the Council to the extent that they have 

the power to direct or control the major activities. The remun eration paid to the 

Councilõs senior employees is as follows:  
   

Officersõ Emoluments ð Senior Employees  
 

       2018/1 9 

Post Title Salary  Bonuses 
Expense 

Allowances  

Compen -

sation for loss 

of office  

Pension 

Contributions  
Total  

  £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Chief 

Executive 1 
120,268 0 629 0 19,243 140,140 

Strategic 

Director of 

Housing & 

Regeneration 2 

11,125 0 80 0 1,780 12,985 

Strategic 

Director of 

Housing & 

Regeneration 3 

40,618 0 111 0 6,499 47,228 

Strategic 

Director of 

Communities & 

Environment  

86,279 0 156 0 13,781 100,216 

Strategic 

Director of  

Major 

Developments  

85,288 0 0 0 13,646 98,934 

Total 343,577 0 976 0 54,948 399,503 
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1) The salary costs for the Chief Executive include £2.9k relat ing to election expenses in 

2018/1 9.  

2) The salary costs for the Director of Ho using & Regeneration include two post holders 

throughout the course of the year.  Director 1: 01/04/2018 - 14/05/2018  

3) The salary costs for the Director of Housing & Regeneration include two post holders 

throughout the course of the year.  Director 2: 15/10/2 018  -31/03/2019  

 

       2017/18  

Post Title Salary  Bonuses 
Expense 

Allowances  

Compen -

sation for loss 

of office  

Pension 

Contributions  
Total  

  £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Chief 

Executive 1 
118,487 0 296 0 18,620 137,403 

Strategic 

Director of 

Housing & 

Regeneration  

91,221 0 235 0 14,595 106,051 

Strategic 

Director of 

Communities & 

Environment  

80,957 0 348 0 12,893 94,198 

Strategic 

Director of 

Major 

Developments  

79,758 0 0 0 12,761 92,519 

Total 370,423 0 878 0 58,870 430,171 

 

1) The salary costs for the Chief Executive inc lude d  £5.8k relating to election expenses in 

2017/1 8.  

 

The number s of other Council  employees  receiving more than £50,000 remuneration  

for the year  (excluding employerõs pension contributions) were paid as follows : 

 
Remuneration Band  Number of  Employees  

£ 2018/1 9 2017/18  

50,000 - 54,999 4 5 

55,000 - 59,999 0 2 

60,000 - 64,999 4 3 

65,000 ð 69,999 2 1 

70,000 ð 74,999 2 1 

75,000 ð 79,999 0 0 

80,000 ð 84,999 0 0 

 

For employees receiving remuneration of £85,000 or more for the year see previous 

table ôOfficersõ Emoluments ð Senior Employees õ.  
 

The figure above for 201 8/1 9 includes no employees for whom an exit package  was 

agreed.  

 

The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the 

compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the following table:  
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Exit package 

cost band 

(including 

special 

payments)  

Number of 

compulsory 

redundancies  

Number of other 

departures 

agreed  

Total number of 

exit packages by 

cost band [b + c]  

Total cost of exit 

packages in each 

band  

  2017/1 8 2018/1 9 2017/1 8 2018/1 9 2017/1 8 2018/1 9 2017/1 8 2018/1 9 

           £ £ 

£0 - £20,000 2 1 1 3 3 4 11,392 49,546 

£20,001 - 

£40,000 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

£40,001 - 

£60,000 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

£60,001 - 

£80,000 

1 0 0 0 1 0 71,366 0 

£80,001 - 

£100,000 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

£100,000 - 

£150,000 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total cost 

included in 

bandings  

      82,758 49,546 

Add: Amounts 

provided for in 

CIES not 

included in 

bandings  

      0 0 

Total cost 

included in 

CIES 

      82,758 49,546 

None of the exit packages shown in the table above re lated to senior employees.  

 

 

Note 3 6 ð External Audit Costs  

 

In 2018/1 9 the following fees relating to External Audit and Inspection were incurred 

and paid to Mazars (KPMG LLP in 2017/18), the Councilõs external auditors: 

 
2017/1 8  2018/1 9 

£'000  £'000 

 Fees payable for statutory audit services   

47 Fees Payable with regard to external audit services 

carried out by the appointed auditor  

36 

11 Fees payable for the certification of grant claims and 

returns 

14 

58  50 

 Fees payable for other audit service s  

3 Fees payable with regard to other audit work  5 

61 Total fee payable to external auditors  55 
 

 

 

The fees relating to grant claims can vary from year to year depending on the 

number of claims to be audited. The figure for 2018/19  is an estimate, as t he work will 

be carried out in the period August to December 201 9. 
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Note 3 7 ð Grant Income   

 

The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 201 8/1 9: 

 Credited to Taxation an d Non Specific Grant Income   

2017/18   2018/1 9 

£'000  £'000 

(981) Revenue Support Grant  0 

(1,655) New Homes Bonus  (1,006) 

(8) Transparency Code Setup Grant  (8) 

0 Brexit (17) 

(2,644)  Total Non Ring -fenced Grants shown on CIES  (1,031) 

   

(670) Disabled Facilities Grants  (777) 

(263) Section 106 agreement  0 

(68) North Kesteven District Council  0 

(226) Heritage Lottery Fund  (47) 

(63) Decent Homes Contract ð Profit Share  0 

(1,423) Lincolnshire County Council  0 

(110) Leaseholder Contributions  (82) 

(117) Waterloo Housing  0 

0 National Rail  (225) 

(61) Other Capital Grants and Contributions  (52) 

(3,002) Total Capital Grants and Contributions  shown on CIES (1,183) 

   

(1,051) 

S31 Grants included in Non Domestic Rates Income on 

CIES 

 

(1,917) 

   

(6,697) Total Non Ringfenced Grants included in CIES  (4,132) 

 

 

2017/18  Credited to Services  2018/1 9 

£'000  £'000 

(15,720) Rent Allowances  (13,923) 

(15,597) Rent Rebates  (13,916) 

(223) Discretionary Housing Payments  (172) 

(437) Housing Benefit Administrati on  (391) 

(147) New Burdens Grant Determination  (213) 

(221) DCLG ð Rogue Landlords  (313) 

(10) English Heritage  0 

(152) Local Council Tax Support Admin Subsidy  (143) 

(106) Home Office  (66) 

(7) Arts Council  0 

(173) Homeless Specific  (780) 

0 Controlli ng Migration  (143) 

(39) Other Grants  (229) 

   

(32,832)  Total Grants and Contributions credited to Services  (30,290) 

   

(39,529) Total Grants, Contributions and Donated Assets  (34,421) 

 

There were no grants received in advance in 201 8/1 9. 
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Note 3 8 ð Related Parties  

 

It is a requirement for the Council to disclose any transactions with a related party, 

including non -financial transactions. A ôrelated partyõ is defined as being an 

organisation with which the Council has dealings and where Officers or  Members of 

the Council have a controlling interest or influence in the activities of that 

organisation. The code  requires local authorities to disclose material transactions 

with ôrelated partiesõ. The disclosure is required in order that the true and fairness of 

the accounts can be understood by the reader of the accounts having knowledge 

of any ôrelated partiesõ of the Council .  

 

Members/Officers  - For 2018/1 9 the Council sent a letter, dated 1 April 201 9, to all 

Members, Chief Officers and Assistant Directors , requesting disclosure of any ôrelated 

party transactionsõ. All letters were returned, no Members or Officers  declared  

pecuniary interests in accordance with section 117 of the Local Government Act 

1972.  

 

In addition, the table below details both M ember and Officer representation on the 

boards of levying bodies, assisted organisations with which the Council makes 

material financial assistance and Joint Ventures.  

 
Name of Organisation  Member Representative  Officer Representative  

Upper Witham ð Drainage Board  Cllr Hewson  

Cllr Vaughan  

Chief Executive  

Witham First ð Drainage Board  Cllr Hewson  

Cllr Vaughan  

Chief Executive  

Witham Third ð Drainage Board  Cllr Hewson  

Cllr Vaughan  

Chief Executive  

Lincoln Arts Trust Cllr Murray  Director of Communities 

& Environment  

Lincoln Dial -a -Ride/ Shopmobility  Cllr Clayton -Hewson  Chief Executive  

Lincoln Citizens Advice Bureau  Cllr Brothwell  Chief Executive  

Investors in Lincoln  Cllr Metcalfe  

Cllr Murray  

Chief Executive  

Lincoln Business Improvement 

Group  

Cllr Metcal fe 

Cllr Nannestad  

Chief Executive  

Central Lincolnshire Joint 

Strategic Planning Partnership  

Cllr Metcalfe  

Cllr Burke 

Cllr Hanrahan  

Director of Communities 

& Environment  

The Shared Revenues & Benefits 

Joint Committee  

Cllr Metcalfe  

Cllr Nannestad  

Chief Exe cutive  

 

None of the above Members or Officers took part in the decision making of any 

financial assistance awarded to any of the organisations.  

 

UK Central Government  - has significant influence  over the general operations of the 

Council.  It is responsib le for providing the statutory framework within which the 

Council operat es, provides the majority of it s funding in the form of grants and 

prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other 

parties (e.g. housing benefits).   

 

Details of transactions with government departments are set out in note 37. 

 


